el E R
Consolidated Income Statement

BE-Z-=F+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEUA Interest income 6 902,246 1,135,362
AMEXH Interest expense 7 (250,253) (323,263)
R E WA Net interest income 651,993 812,099
EmERE R R Net premiums earned 8 476,956 533,536
E bl A Other income 9 297,470 232,471
"EWA Operating income 1,426,419 1,578,106
FA 2R [O] B % 58 Net claims written back 8 8,767 6,642
e F5E Net commission expenses 8 (135,890) (162,541)
e Operating expenses 10 (235,043) (219,267)
RETRE AT A AL & i A Operating profit before impairment 1,064,253 1,202,940
B ORI (A o] # Write-back of loan impairment allowances 13 3,545 5,680
R E R Operating profit 1,067,798 1,208,620
JE(EEE R Rm A Share of profit of a joint venture 24 - 2,450
BR B A= A Profit before taxation 1,067,798 1,211,070
Fi1A Taxation 14(a) (85,214) (85,524)
REERR Profit for the year 982,584 1,125,546
SR - Profit attributable to:
NAFIREE Equity holders of the Company 982,404 1,125,393
R IR RER R Non-controlling interests 180 153
982,584 1,125,546

F15E225E FiE it Bir e

MBS RERH—E D ©

financial statements.

The notes on pages 115 to 225 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-Z-=F+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013
FET
HK$'000
REEm A Profit for the year 982,584 1,125,546
Hih 2 EU - Other comprehensive income:
HENREEF> EEER Items that are or may be reclassified
FIER : subsequently to profit or loss:
AREEES Available-for-sale securities:
— KRB (EB) Wk EsE — net unrealised (losses)/gains 22 (37,853) 357,875
— HERAFEEES — fair value changes transferred to
BEA MR income statement on disposal 33 (295,593) (38,230)
— — amortisation 33 34 39
| — tax effect 33 54,908 (52,748)
R MENR - Cash flow hedges:
— BAREERO AL EEE) — fair value changes transferred to
income statement 33 4,272 5,495
— FiE — tax effect 33 (704) (907)
BB INE TSR E AR Exchange differences on translation
bEH ZRE of foreign operations:
— B AF — subsidiary 3,695 1,015
—/ERA — joint venture 33 - 5276
EliEEE AR HbEEEE Share of other comprehensive losses of
a joint venture 33 - (32)
HEGERQFIRERE DK Release of fair value reserve and
N EREEBNE LS translation reserve upon disposal of
investment in a joint venture 33 - (7,733)
AEFHMWEE (EE),/ Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Wz - EHIBRTLIR for the year, net of tax (271,241) 270,050
AEELHKSBEE Total comprehensive income
for the year 711,343 1,395,596
EEEmkasE%E Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
iN/NE] )31 3z Equity holders of the Company 710,794 1,395,342
RIEFIREAR R Non-controlling interests 549 254
711,343 1,395,596

F1155225E FTElkii Asr e MRt —E65 < The notes on pages 115 to 225 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZ-—Z=ZF+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2013

2012
TFETT
HK$'000
BE ASSETS
HeREHES Cash and short-term funds 17 11,757,533 9,715,544
JFEULFI B K PE R Interest and remittance receivables 18 368,800 469,590
HFEEE Assets held for sale 19 129,767 -
TEEMITA Derivative financial instruments 20 831,426 1,443,013
ERHAE TR Loan portfolio, net 21 22,268,397 25,895,399
BHIEE - Investment securities:
— AEHE — available-for-sale 22(a) 3,860,455 5,812,827
— RHEZRIH — held-to-maturity 22(h) 8,560,595 9,237,808
A RIE - e Rk Prepayments, deposits and
Hih&RE other assets 25 18,030 39,641
EEEE Fixed assets 26 44,085 29,128
BRREE Reinsurance assets 29 180,742 222,007
EEH#E Total assets 48,019,830 52,864,957
=it LIABILITIES
FERHFIE Interest payable 27 195,830 235,756
FERIRTE - BNAS R Accounts payable, accrued expenses
EmEE and other liabilities 28 4,612,260 4,465,116
BGEEEREREN Liabilities directly associated with
BfE assets held for sale 19 384 =
AR T A Derivative financial instruments 20 785,458 175,095
EHTIEBE Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 144,665 101,587
EEIBAE Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 57,156 109,404
R B & Insurance liabilities 29 1,294,712 1,545,863
BEITERES Debt securities issued 30 31,355,185 36,404,627
EEITIRIBES Mortgage-backed securities issued 31 - 214,672
BEHAEE Total liabilities 38,445,650 43,252,120
R EQUITY
A AL Capital and reserves attributable to
K the equity holders:
R& A Share capital 32 2,000,000 2,000,000
REB & F Retained profits 4,548,760 5,302,410
BORAZ B Proposed dividends 16 1,500,000 750,000
ENE e Contingency reserve 33 1,213,827 977,773
NEERE Fair value reserve 33 290,605 569,109
Eapial e Hedging reserve 33 (5,088) (8,656)
PE H G5 Translation reserve 33 13,104 9,778
9,561,208 9,600,414
REFIER RN ER Non-controlling interests in equity 12,972 12,423
A Total equity 9,574,180 9,612,837
EERESELE Total liabilities and equity 48,019,830 52,864,957
EEREA-ZUEN A AREREETT . Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 April
2014.
REBRR Norman T. L. Chan REX Eddie W. M. Yue

BT EF#FE7TEE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #77& % Executive Director

F1152 2258 Fislif st At A B iSHRERm—385 »  The notes on pages 115 to 225 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

R-ZE—=5+=-A=+—H
as at 31 December 2013

2012
FHIT
HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 17 11,755,482 9,588,343
& F) B, 2 BE R Interest and remittance receivables 18 359,404 460,415
PTESRMITA Derivative financial instruments 20 831,426 1,443,013
BEAEE TR Loan portfolio, net 21 16,942,574 21,943,803
BHIEE - Investment securities:
— A[EHEE — available-for-sale 22(a) 3,860,455 5,812,827
— HABERH — held-to-maturity 22(0) 8,560,595 9,237,808
B QRIRE Interests in subsidiaries 23 5,294,250 3,943,669
AR RIE - ek Prepayments, deposits and
Hih&EE other assets 25 16,808 46,520
EE&E Fixed assets 26 44,085 29,116
BREEEE Reinsurance assets 29 181,053 222,372
EEHAE Total assets 47,846,132 52,727,886
=L LIABILITIES
FERTRI B Interest payable 27 195,830 235,686
FERIRIE « BNRAS R Accounts payable, accrued expenses
EmaRE and other liabilities 28 4,612,728 4,687,729
PTESMTE Derivative financial instruments 20 785,458 175,095
= HAR A B (S Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 144,665 100,563
EEIBAE Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 56,911 109,103
R EE Insurance liabilities 29 1,297,034 1,548,076
ERITEBES Debt securities issued 30 31,355,185 36,404,627
EEEE Total liabilities 38,447,811 43,260,879
= EQUITY
A ARLRAR Capital and reserves attributable to
= the equity holders:
[N Share capital 32 2,000,000 2,000,000
R & A Retained profits 4,398,977 5,178,781
HOR AR S Proposed dividends 16 1,500,000 750,000
[\ B i Contingency reserve 33 1,213,827 977,773
NEEGE Fair value reserve 33 290,605 569,109
R Hedging reserve 33 (5,088) (8,656)
AT Total equity 9,398,321 9,467,007
EERERARE Total liabilities and equity 47,846,132 52,727,386

BEREN T —UFMA - BHUERRETT -

2014.

FRER Norman T. L. Chan REX

I ERWITES

FENSE225E BT Rt A M wERN —# -

Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #7T&F

financial statements.

Eddie W. M. Yue
Executive Director

EREBRESERAT

TE-=FFR

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 April

The notes on pages 115 to 225 are an integral part of these consolidated
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FARREBE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z-=F+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2013

RRIE(
Attributable to equity holders

REHERR
A& FERF Hitfts Non-
Share Retained Other controlling
capital profits* reserves interests
T B T T )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
R-ZB--F—-A—H%& Balance as at 1 January 2012 2,000,000 5,523,228 1,031,844 12,169 8,567,241
FEERT Profit for the year - 1,125,393 - 153 1,125,546
i 2ElE Other comprehensive income:

AfEEER S Available-for-sale securities - - 266,904 - 266,904
BE e Cash flow hedges 33 - - 4,588 - 4,588
ME BN EBISEER Exchange differences on

ERER translation of foreign operations

—MBAH — Subsidiary 33 = = 914 101 1,015

—5EA7 — joint venture 3 - - 5276 - 5,276
HEABARRE Disposal of investment in

ajoint venture 3 - - (7,733 - (7,733
TEEZANRES Total comprehensive income
for the year - 1,125,393 269,949 254 1,395,5%

AERZEFIBAD mEER  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
RETHEN50%5,75%Z  premium earned from retained profits

B tE to contingency reserve 33 - (266,266) 266,266 - -

HEREEREZREET  Release of contingency

reserve to retained profits 33 - 20,055 (20,055) - -
BRZE——4%KE Dividend paid related to 2011 - (350,000) - - (350,000)
R-B--F Balance as at 31 December 2012

+ZA=1t-R#&H 2,000,000 6,052,410 1,548,004 12,423 9,612,837
KEE & Profit for the year - 982,404 - 180 982,584
Hﬁﬂ%@uﬂlé : Other comprehensive income:

AL ER Avallable-for-sale securities 33 - = (278,504) - (278,504)
Remen Cash flow hedges 33 - - 3,568 - 3,568
RE BN EBIEER Exchange differences on

EREE tranglation of foreign operations

— WBAH — Subsidiary 3 = = 3,326 369 3,695
AEERENREE Total comprehensive income

for the year - 982,404 (271,610) 549 711,343

HREEFIEAZ WAEE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
REFEH50%F75%Z  premium earned from retained profits

[ G to contingency reserve 3 - (259,008) 259,008 - -
HEREEEEZRE%T  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 3 - 22,954 (22,954) - -
ERN=E—ZFRE Dividend paid related to 2012 - (750,000) - - (750,000)
R-B-ZF Balance as at 31 December 2013
+ZB=t-A&H 2,000,000 6,048,760 1,512,448 12,972 9,574,180
* %:§,5¢+ A=+—H ' ' ERRBEFFE e As at 31 December 2013, HK$500 million (2012: HK$750 million) and HK$1 billion (2012:
B5EBIT(Z —F :75EBT)RI10E /%75(* nil) were earmarked as proposed ordinary and special dividends respectively from
T——F: ﬁ) D RVEREIRE RS RAFRIARS © retained profits.

511 5522255%%(%}7%@/\%?&#&%5’]—ﬁB 4 o The notes on pages 115 to 225 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z-=F+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2013

2013
FET
HK$°000

B EE

Notes

2012
TAT
HK$'000

REXBMBRERE Cash flows from operating activities
5 T Operating profit 1,067,798 1,208,620
AT FIBEL AT - Adjustment for:

FEWA Interest income (912,339) (1,143,387)

MEZ Interest expense 217,521 262,501

g S A Dividend income 9 (89,077) (90,135)

e Depreciation 10 17,763 14,127

I TEIEESFIT B Amortisation of discount on

debt securities issued 32,732 60,762

B R A B Write-back of loan impairment

allowances 13 (3,545) (5,680)
AP ERESFEERFEE Amortisation of unrealised loss on
HIZE AR AR B3R B R 8 available-for-sale securities
transferred to held-to-maturity
securities 33 34 39
BHILE i (B Y Amortisation of premium on
investment securities 10,059 7,985
T ERE WS F5E Net gains on disposal of investments 12 (135,737) (90,260)
HEAEATIRE WS Gain on disposal of investment in
a joint venture - (7,137)
@I AATEEE Change in fair value of
financial instruments (2,615) (23,558)
WEMERH AT EEE Fair value changes of cash flow hedge
B A== transferred to income statement 33 4,272 5,495
B U B Interest received 990,708 1,165,156
BERFLE Interest paid (257,447) (263,989)
Rt EEERAGEEHH Cash flows from operating activities
BEEBRRERE before changes in operating assets
and liabilities 940,127 1,100,539
[REIHA B B8 = {E H 1% 21 &7 Change in time deposits with original

B E BAF s F) maturity of more than three months (1,426,893) (8,252,857)
F&‘H&[ﬂﬁ@j Change in remittance receivables 21,720 99,644
TERTERIE « e REMEESH) Change in prepayments, deposits and

other assets 608 (4,722)
BERHEEEE Change in loan portfolio 3,630,547 7,246,099
FEITIRIE - ERAS R Change in accounts payable,

Hithg EEH) accrued expenses and other liabilities 147,709 189,979
R B EZEE Change in insurance liabilities, net (209,886) (97,828)
AN 5, = KR Exchange differences (61,129) (7,707)
KEMEHRE Cash generated from operation 3,042,803 273,147
[N Taxation paid (41,257) (115,645)
R EISPTSIR &) F 58 Net cash generated from

operating activities 3,001,546 157,502
EBRBEHFERAT —T—=FFx% 113



HAEIWERER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REZHMERERE

Cash flows from investing activities

2012
THAT

HK$'000

BEETEEE Purchase of fixed assets 26 (32,720) (11,982)
BEAHEERS Purchase of available-for-sale securities ~ 22(a) (5,277,911) (4,161,064)
BEREZRIHES Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 22(b) (2,054,866) (1,926,101)
HEAEANT Disposal of a joint venture - 137,394
& RER A HEFES Proceeds from sale and redemption of
FT15 7838 available-for-sale securities 7,046,328 1,059,051
HEREOREZ I HES Proceeds from sale and redemption of
FT15 3838 held-to-maturity securities 22(b) 2,761,350 962,170
BRI HEEBHFRE Dividend received from available-for-sale
securities 111,262 82,313
BEEREE(FTR) Net cash generated from/(used in)
IR& %5 investing activities 2,553,443 (3,858,219)
BEFNBRESHEA(FE) Net cash inflows/(outflows) before
HE financing 5,554,989 (3,700,717)
METBMEESRE cash flows from financing activities
BITES AT R Proceeds from issue of debt securities 30 18,127,508 19,076,997
BRI ETERES Redemption of debt securities issued 30 (21,984,670) (23,661,825)
BEBITIRIBESFEN Repayment of mortgage-backed
securities issued 31 (214,672) (152,465)
B A Dividend paid 16 (750,000) (350,000)
BB BB TR & F58 Net cash used in financing activities (4,821,834) (5,087,293)
HERZEFERELEBE M Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
ORD) 25 cash equivalents 733,155 (8,788,010)
FURERERRELER Beginning cash and cash equivalents 1,204,129 9,986,013
EXHREREFHRELER Effect of exchange rates on cash and
-7 cash equivalents 11,283 6,126
FREASRERBELER Ending cash and cash equivalents 1,948,567 1,204,129
BREFBRAEHES R Included in cash and cash equivalents of
ERBEIER the statement of financial position 17 1,819,225 1,204,129
BEEHERKEREEERE Included in the assets of the BHKMC
REBARINEE disposal group 19@a) 129,342 —
EMIHE R ERIESIER Ending cash and cash equivalents 1,948,567 1,204,129

FENSE25E BN R A M RERN —# -

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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B EETR BN - A REE R BERDIH R E &
8.

KRR MBRRIZELKABEIIRE - I
ERATHEEESFERE  ARFEIIRD
TREENERAR(BETESRTA)
ME[ELRE -

BRITRRES  mEMEFHEEPBERE
PIERM B BR KA ERRAE
ERNABFEREANER B

ERHATEM BREEAN B RERS -
BRAETEAGIHEE  MERERER
74 B RS N B 7T fE AU -
EES MR BB R - RER R
HUSARBRRBESHRE - SN
HARE -

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ((HKFRSs) which is a
collective term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASS) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale investment securities, financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)
carried at fair value.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

EHRBIFERAT —T—=FF% 115



HEBEIRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

New standards and amendments effective on 1
January 2013

The following standards and amendments effective in
2013, are relevant to the Group:

Amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” changes the disclosure of items
presented in other comprehensive income in the
statement of comprehensive income. The
amendment requires entities to separate items
presented in other comprehensive income into
two groups, based on whether or not they may
be recycled to profit or loss in the future. Items
that will not be recycled will be presented
separately from items that may be recycled in
the future. This amendment mainly affects
disclosures in the financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures” on asset and liability offsetting
requires new disclosure requirements on
recognised financial instruments that are offset
in the statement of financial position, as well as
those recognised financial instruments that are
subject to master netting or similar arrangements
irrespective of whether they are offset. This
amendment mainly affects disclosures in the
financial statements.
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HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”
replaces the requirements in HKAS 27
“Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”. It
builds on existing principles by identifying the
concept of control as the determining factor in
whether an entity should be included within the
consolidated financial statements of the parent
company. The standard provides additional
guidance to assist in the determination of control
where this is difficult to assess. The adoption of
HKFRS 10 does not change the control
conclusions of the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities.

HKFRS 12 “Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities” includes the disclosure requirements for
all forms of interests in other entities, including
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates,
structured entities and unconsolidated structured
entities. It introduces the term “structured
entity”. The type of entity intended by the
standard setters to be a structured entity is
unlikely to differ significantly from an entity that
HK-SIC 12 previously described as a special
purpose entity. The disclosures required by
HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those previously required by the respective
standards.
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. HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurements” establishes
a single source of fair value measurements and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSS.
HKFRS 13 does not change when an entity is
required to use fair value, but rather provides
guidance on how to measure fair value under
HKFRSs when fair value is required or permitted.
The adoption of HKFRS 13 results in additional
disclosures and there is no material impact on
the fair value measurements of the Group's
assets and liabilities.

o “Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle” sets out amendments to a number of
standards which have no material impact on the
financial position or the comprehensive income
of the Group.

New standards, amendments and interpretations
issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2013, and have not
been applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except the following set out
below:

o HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities and
replaces part of HKAS 39.
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Financial assets are required to be classified into
two measurement categories: those measured at
fair value, and those measured at amortised cost.
The decision is made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing its financial instruments and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instrument.

For financial liabilities, the standard retains most
of the HKAS 39 requirements. The main change is
that, in cases where the fair value option is taken
for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value
change due to an entity’s own credit risk is
recorded in other comprehensive income rather
than the income statement, unless this creates
an accounting mismatch.

HKFRS 9 (Amendment) “Financial instruments”
brings into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge
accounting that will allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in the financial
statements. The most significant change from
hedge accounting under HKAS 39 is that entities
can defer the time value of options, the forward
element in forward contracts and currency basis
spreads in other comprehensive income.
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The previous mandatory effective date of HKFRS
9 was removed by the HKICPA in December 2013
and a mandatory effective date will be
determined after the entire replacement of HKAS
39 is completed.

The Group is considering the implications of the
whole standard including the other remaining
phase of HKFRS 9.

“Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle” includes changes to HKFRS 1 “First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards”, HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”,
HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” and HKAS
40 “Investment Property”. The amendments
largely apply to annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014.

There are no other HKFRSS or interpretations that are
not yet effective that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.



2.2. ZFEIRE

REMBHREBEAR T REMAH
BLRBE_T—=F+t-A=1t—
AWM EE -

@)

i 2 ]

MEBRAREMEASE B
AR (BEANETES
BENEBAREBRIBES
BME(E—)DARAAR
Bauhinia MBS Limited) = & 7
EEBERALHEEEEEMES
s A S RNE R R W EESTT
FEENFEZSZO®R  NE
EE Atz AR - HEA
RIEEHEEREAREEE B
B2 EEA AR » I B &%
HIMEAR |EE AR IR A AR o

REBEKEAFRNRS - &
BN AEIR WS HE S -
BRIFERBRN ST EE
BELBERE  BARERE
BIVET AR ERE
BRI BRRBELS
B DREREAS B BR—
B o

R RER R AE I IE B AN A
FREEBEME A REHEES
DRV R o JRIE SRR
ERAaMBRARREEEEH
WaR=2Y - BARARBRRE
B D FET o RIEHIRER
REGEARBERER D - HiR
BUERR 27 ARIEHIRERR
AN R Z MEHIREFR SR ©

EARANMBRRAERS B
BB A B R B IR A HIRE
MR EREIIR - HEBARZ
FEAARRIZE W X
BRAXRAERA -

2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2013.

@)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities used for issuing mortgage-backed securities,
namely HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited and
Bauhinia MBS Limited) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of the subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the
net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company. They are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
separately from equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of the
net profit for the period between non-controlling
interest and equity holders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less
provision for impairment allowances. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests without change of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
the non-controlling interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Joint venture

A joint venture (formerly “jointly controlled entity”
under previous HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”) is
an arrangement whereby the Group and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost.

The Group's share of its joint ventures’ profits or losses
is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the joint venture is stated at cost less
provision for impairment allowances with the results of
the joint venture accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2:3.

2.4,

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

Non interest income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.22

(@) Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an
accrual basis when the service has been provided.
Upfront arrangement fees that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate are recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate in determining
interest income on the loans.

(b) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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2.5. Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments;
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the investments were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition.

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets
held for trading, and those designated as at fair value
through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term or if it is part of
a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value
through profit or loss at inception if it meets the
following criteria:

(i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial assets or financial
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases; or

(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial
liabilities is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on
which information about the financial assets and/
or financial liabilities is provided internally to the
key management personnel.
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(i) financial assets, such as debt securities held,
containing one or more embedded derivatives
which significantly modify the cash flows, can be
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and for which the
Group has no intention of trading immediately or in the
short term.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Where the Group sold or reclassified held-to-maturity
assets (i) other than due to an isolated event that is
beyond the Group’s control, is non-recurring and could
not have been reasonably anticipated by the Group,
such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness or (ii) other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category
would be reclassified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative
financial investments that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories.
Available-for-sale investments are those intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rate, exchange rate or market prices. They are
initially recognised at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently
held at fair value.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement.
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Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-
to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are
included in the income statement in the period in
which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (fair value reserve),
until the financial asset is derecognised or impaired at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in equity is reclassified to income
statement. However, interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the income
statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income statement
when the entity’s right to receive payment is
established.

If an asset measured at fair value has a bid price and
an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that is
most representative of fair value in the circumstances
shall be used to measure fair value. If there is no active
market for a financial asset, the Group establishes fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation
technigues commonly used by market participants.

The Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that
would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the
available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention
and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity at the date of reclassification.
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2.6.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value
gains or losses recorded before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial
assets reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity categories are determined at the reclassification

date.

Impairment of financial assets

@)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
assets is impaired includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about the following loss
events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor,

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

. the Group granting to the borrower, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, a concession that the Group
would not otherwise consider;

o initiation of bankruptcy proceedings or other
financial reorganisation,

. the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
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. observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant. For exposures which are
not individually significant, the Group will assess
impairment either individually or collectively. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.
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The calculation of the present value of estimated future
cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less
costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether
or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of
impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of similar credit risk characteristics which are relevant
to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of
such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability
to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in
the group and historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the
effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of
assets should reflect and be directionally consistent
with changes in related observable data from period to
period which are indicative of changes in the
probability of losses in the group and their magnitude.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against
the related allowance for loan impairment at the
discretion of the Credit Committee. Such loans are
written off after all the necessary procedures have
been completed and the amount of the loss has been
determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the
allowance for loan impairment in the income
Statement.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that an
available-for-sale investment or a group of
available-for-sale investments is impaired. For debt
securities, the group uses the criteria referred to in (a)
above. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
the instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
income statement, the impairment loss to the extent of
such change is reversed through the income
Statement.

Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms
have been renegotiated are no longer considered to be
past due but are treated as renegotiated loans.
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2.7. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at
inception and recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
include (i) notes and Transferable Loan Certificates issued
under the Debt Issuance Programme (DIP), (ii) notes offered
to retail investors through the placing banks in standalone
retail bond issues and under the Retail Bond Issuance
Programme (RBIP) and (iii) notes issued under the Medium
Term Note (MTN) Programme. The mortgage-backed
securities (MBS) issued by structured entity through the
US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-backed Securitisation
Programme (“MBS Programme”) are recorded as
mortgage-backed securities issued in the statement of
financial position on consolidation of structured entities.
These notes (including MBS) are initially designated as either
(i) financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (i)
other financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value being recorded in the income statement. Those
notes which are designated as hedged items under a fair
value hedge are adjusted for the fair value changes subject
to the risk being hedged.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of the
consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.

EHRBIFERAT[ —T—=FF% 131



HEBEIRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

132

2.8.

2898

HERRFIAR LR ST A

NAFHEREHABRENEREE
AR ERENF A2 RMRENE
B HENR S HHER - ERRENR
FARERAMEIR S HER - B
DMEeMEEMSRSRENENLD
JEm REARECERREEZRE
EMBAR D B R EHROERN - £
BEERRILER -

UAHER A ABSENERAE
REBTEBESFNRX S AR - £
B ENMERELRER - 2RAR
ERAEHRENEHBEREE - 2;
HEE EmE - AR R K L

.
=7]
o °

TTAESM T AR INETREE

TETASVIRNATVATATARNZ
BEATERR  HREATESH
AR AFEDNRBEERERMSEE
E o BR&AMSER 5 MEIBER G
BEA(BRESREFHREL LS
EEEEL)  EATANAFE
RIEHE  AEREEAKR: MEARQ
FELSEHEE  AERAEEARK - #®
TETAMELNBRMENFSE
DRIZ2FINERE M BAREK -

RYEHERE - REBRTZITETA
ZAFEESERZEEAIENK
BEUREZAFE)

HETHRAHEMEMIAZITETAZ
OB R BT £ & A
YRR - XS HWIEARTFERL
FTABRRFER  ZERAXTET
B ERBMTETERIR - 25K
ARPTETBARTEFE - TR
BEFHAN YRR IER

2.8.

2.9.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
investments are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and
receivables are recognised when cash is advanced to the
borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
debt securities issued are recognised on the trade date.
Other liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise.
Financial liabilities are derecognised from the statement of
financial position when and only when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is
negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments
are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.
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The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:
(i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities
or firm commitments (“fair value hedge”); or, (ii) hedges of
highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised
asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (“cash flow
hedge”). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives
designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction,
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a
hedged item for which the effective interest method is
used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.

(b)y Ccash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the

income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.
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When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when
a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

2.1

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

.Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses the
performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2013



BEENBERERSH ARSI EER
BENBA - BEENANRBESE
HEEERHDERES D - KADE
TEREDBEENERRANREE
RO °

2.13.5M8 ] E

(@)

HHER2HEH

AEEET B RANTBEHREK
RRFrENIE B R A R EEM
EXIZ2REREMANER
(THhEEE® T E - RAMK
BRATETREMZS] - A
ARBZHBERA R B MALE
BZ258% -

INERZ BB 5 E B 2 E R
EAEZIE BB IA RS E A
REXRBEWINEHENEE
BERABEMEENELBE
FEWREHRTER

MONEFHEREHIAR - K
SEMNETERRE - E
SERRAEERINESHERIER
BIRE - RYRHER B HE
KIE  MASNEETENIE
¥R  EUARTEMER
BIARETE AFEE A HE R
& .

Income directly associated with each segment is included in
determining segment performance. Funding costs are
allocated to each segment by way of internal fund transfer
pricing mechanisms. Cost allocation is based on the direct
costs incurred by the respective segment and apportionment
of management overheads.

2.13.Foreign currency translation

@)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
which is the Company's functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at period-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.
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In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale, a distinction is made between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes in
the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in
the carrying amount, except impairment, are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

o Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

o Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions);

. All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income;

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2013



«  bRFREEMERE
L ELEE P
LB R

e HFARBE BREFIH
NAI R EF B R
HEFREMBEEAR
HHZERENEET
BEmESMEN Z8
AHEME2ERE - B H
E2 R BRI FTE
o R ERENES W
SRERRLEREBN

— 85 -

d HERIHEH

BEHERINEKE  ERRER
LB RA R BRI BRA
RE IR FE(E BB SRR A
YasRA o

EEEE

& E B AR P R AR R 5T 8 KR
EEEYIR - ELAANBIEKEZS
HEMEERXE

ZBEBMEERKANEEASBE R AL
ESARER 2 RKEENZ - HeE
T 8B A BARE - T RIETABE
IREERERSBILEE (HER) °
BEBRBOHIREER LR - A
Hip e RRERAXINREEE 2
TSHIR B M R TR

3 Exchange differences arising from the above
process are reported in shareholders’ equity as
translation reserve; and

o On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is disposed of, or partially disposed of,
such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation

On disposal of foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are taken to the income statement.

2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements  over the unexpired period of the lease
Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease

Computer 3years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. It is included in the income
Statement.

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries, joint

venture, and other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that its interests in
joint venture are impaired. Such objective evidence includes
whether there has been any significant adverse changes in
the technological, market, economic or legal environment in
which the joint venture operates or whether there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. If
there is an indication that an interest in an associate or joint
venture is impaired, the Group assesses whether the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement for the amount by which the carrying amount is
lower than the higher of the investment's fair value less
costs to sell or value in use. Any reversal of such impairment
loss in subsequent periods is reversed through income
Statement.

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.16.Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax
is provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, which
are charged or credited directly to other comprehensive
income, is also credited or charged directly to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in
the income statement together with the deferred gain or
loss.
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2.17.Employee benefits

(@)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
oCCurs.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of
which are generally held in separate trustee —
administered funds. These pension plans are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the
Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred and are reduced by the portion
of employer contributions being forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to full vesting
of the employer contributions.
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Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the
entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to their present value.

2.18.Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
measured at the present value of the expenditure expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation.

2.19.Leases

@)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. The Group entered into
operating leases primarily as lessee. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease
period has expired, any payment required to be made
to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an
expense in the period in which termination takes place.
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(b) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. The Group entered into finance leases
primarily as lessor. Finance leases are capitalised as
receivables at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value of
the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognised over the term of
the lease using the net investment method, which
reflects a constant periodic rate of return. Hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of a
finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as
finance leases. Impairment allowances are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.6.

2.20.Cash and cash equivalents

2.21

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months" maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash
and balances with banks that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

.Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date that the guarantee was
given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Ccontingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised. Any changes in the liability relating to financial
guarantees are taken to the income statement.
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The guarantees given to investors of mortgage-backed
securities issued by the Company for the timely repayment
of guaranteed MBS are recorded as financial guarantees
under HKAS 39 in the Company’s statement of financial
position.

Other financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as
insurance contracts in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in Note 2.22 (b).

2.22.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

@)

Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme of the Group is accounted for on
the annual accounting basis. Under the annual
accounting approach, the Group makes provisions
based on credible estimates of future income and
outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result
includes any adjustments arising from the correction of
the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written
through Authorized Institutions (Als) as defined in
accordance with the Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction
of discounts, include the reinsurance premiums to be
paid to the approved reinsurers, the risk premiums and
servicing fees earned by the Group. The net premiums
are recognised as income on a time-apportioned basis
during the time the insurance coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net
premiums written which are estimated to relate to
risks and services subsequent to the end of each
reporting period.
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Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims
incurred but not reported and loss reserve at the end
of each reporting period. For risk-sharing business,
50% or 75% of the net risk premiums earned in a year
depending on the respective product is set aside as a
contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the end
of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of the
Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into
by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group is
compensated for losses on one or more insurance
contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which the
Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held
are recognised as reinsurance assets. These assets
consist of claims recoverable from reinsurers and
receivables that are dependent on the expected claims
and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due
to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are
recognised as an expense.

commissions are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.
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(b) Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan
facilities provided to eligible small and medium-sized
enterprises (“SMEs") and non-listed enterprises, in
return for guarantee fee, and insurance coverage on
reverse mortgage provided to elderly people, in return
for insurance premium.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are
adequate on each reporting date, using the current
estimates of future cash flows under these contracts. If
the assessment shows that the carrying amount of its
guarantee and insurance liabilities are inadequate in
the light of the estimated future cash flows, the
shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.

50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the
insurance premium earned in a year is set aside as a
Contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered by directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the end
of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of the
Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

2.23.Dividend distribution

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each
reporting period is disclosed as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity and as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved by shareholders.
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2.24.Non-current assets held for sale and disposal

groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale and stated at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is
recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable.

Financial risk management

3.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios
of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase
of assets through issuance of debt securities; and (iii) to
provide mortgage insurance cover to Als in respect of
mortgage loans originated by such Als and secured on
residential properties in Hong Kong; (iv) to provide financial
guarantee cover to Als in respect of loans originated by such
Als to SMEs and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong; (v) to
provide insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse
mortgage loans originated by such Als to elderly people; and
(vi) to operate a centralised microfinance platform to support
microfinance loans. By their nature, the Group’s activities are
principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or
combination of risks. The Group manages the risks in a
prudent manner in sustaining the Group's financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
corporate level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks. The
policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees,
including the Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO), Transaction Approval Committee (TAC)
and Operational Risk Committee (ORC) which report to
Corporate Risk Management Committee.
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The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and
standards for asset acquisition and mortgage insurance. The
ALCO oversees the implementation of market risk
management and investment guidelines approved by the
Board of Directors. The TAC conducts an in-depth analysis of
pricing economics and associated credit risks for business
transactions, whilst taking into consideration the latest
market conditions and business strategies approved by the
Board. The ORC is responsible for ensuring that all business
entities and line functions maintain an effective operational
risk and internal control framework. The ORC is also
responsible for providing directions and resolving issues
related to policies, controls and management of operational
issues referred to by line functions, as well as ensuring
prompt and appropriate corrective action in response to
audit findings related to operational risks or internal controls.
In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the independent
review of risk management and the control environment.
The most important types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk which includes currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio,
investment securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit
risk on liquid funds and investment securities is limited
because the credit ratings of the counterparties, mainly
sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies, banks and companies,
should meet the minimum requirement in accordance with
the investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. Allowance for impairment
is provided for losses that have been incurred at the end of
the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property
market could result in losses that are different from those
provided for at the end of the reporting period. The Group
therefore has a prudent policy for managing its exposure to
credit risk.
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To maintain the quality of the asset and mortgage insurance
portfolios, the Group adheres to a four-pronged approach to
(i) select Approved Sellers with established criteria, (i) adopt
prudent asset purchasing criteria and insurance eligibility
criteria, (iii) conduct effective due diligence reviews and (iv)
ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or
transactions.

Credit risk exposures on mortgage loans of the Group are
spread over a large number of customers and
counterparties. The underlying collaterals on the Group's
mortgage exposures are located in Hong Kong and Korea.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly
consist of properties and the deferred consideration (Note
28). For finance lease receivable, the collateral types include
taxi and public light bus licenses. Mortgage portfolio and
finance lease receivable are generally fully secured by
collateral. The current collateral value of properties is
determined with the use of public indices on a portfolio
basis. For other non-mortgage portfolio, no collateral is
generally sought.
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Time deposits with banks and investment securities

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due to
the nature of the counterparties and short term maturity.
Investment securities are generally unsecured, with the
exception of asset-backed securities which are secured by
properties or other assets.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swap Dealers Association
master agreement with all counterparties for derivative
transactions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures are
monitored against counterparty risk limits established in
accordance with the investment guidelines and credit risk
policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits are
subject to regular review by the Credit Committee on a semi-
annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject to
counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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(@ ARETFFAEERGMIEMEE (@ Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking
ZH MR E RN &= EERR account of collateral held or other credit
DT - enhancements are analysed as follows:
REBNAREMEERS = The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
ERBEEEMSEMES - & assets of the Group and the Company are equal to
EBERINESEERRD their carrying amounts. The maximum exposures to
waR : credit risk of off-balance sheet exposures are as

follows:
piS- 1 | N
The Group The Company
R=B-—= AZE R=2-= RZT—_4F
+=HA=+-H +=ZB=t+-HB +tZA=1—H
As at As at As at
31December  31December 31December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
TET TAEx TET THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IBER Financial guarantees
(BIBERL (contractual amount under
FEMENEE) the MBS programme) - - - 214,742
BEBRER Total risk-in-force
— RiaREE — mortgage insurance
business 14,453,649 16,614,898 15,026,481 17,101,150
—HiERE — other guarantee and
e insurance business 1,625,083 1,152,296 1,625,083 1,152,296

16,078,732 17,767,194 16,651,564 18,468,188
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b)) EFEEMEEEZ=HMTE (b)y Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as

N follows:
PN |
The Group
R=Z2-= RZE—=

+=A=+-H +=A TEHET=E

As at As at As at
31December  31December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
TER THT TER THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ABHBTARE Neither past due nor impaired 21,969,373 25,518,011 16,687,185 21,607,824
AHERRE Past due but not impaired 298,671 379,243 255,106 337,812
BRE Impaired 2,178 2,197 1,578 2,197
RGBS Gross loan portfolio 22,270,222 25,899,457 16,943,869 21,947,833
ERRERE Allowance for loan impairment (1,825) (4,052) (1,295) (4,030)

22,268,397 25,895,399 16,942,574 21,943,803

2 3 AR R R 8 HA IR R R E LAY The credit quality of loans that were neither past due
EREENEEEER  AI2E nor impaired as at the end of the reporting period can
RNEBERMR AT TR RS be assessed by reference to the internal rating system
1TaHE © adopted by the Group.
AEH N
The Group The Company
F-ZF R-F--F R-B-= —F-CF
+=ZA=t-B TZA=t—H t=A=+-H tZA=+—H
As at As at As at As at
31December  31December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
THT THT TET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HA - Grades:
1238 1103 21,950,123 25,500,399 16,673,649 21,595,505
4% 4 383 = 383 -
54 5 18,867 17,612 13,153 12,319

21,969,373 25,518,011 16,687,185 21,607,824
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Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either no credit risk or
no recent past due history; and with different levels of
credit enhancements in addition to the collateral held
as security for mortgage portfolio and finance lease
receivable.

Grade 4 includes loans with recent past due history
and with different levels of credit enhancement in
addition to the collateral held as security for mortgage
portfolio and finance lease receivable.

Grade 5 includes loans with recent past due history
and with collateral held as security for mortgage
portfolio and finance lease receivable.

Loans past due but not impaired

The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans

RENERAATEAN -

that were past due but not impaired at the end of the
reporting period:

rEE
The Group
R=Z-= RZE—=F
+=A=+-8 +-A=+-8
As at As at
31December  31December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
THT THT TET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ki Past due:
=EAAKMUT Three months or less 296,306 376,078 252,741 334,647
NERZAT Six months or less but
BiER=EA over three months 369 561 369 561
A/ EA Qver six months 1,996 2,604 1,996 2,604
k] Total 298,671 379,243 255,106 337,812
HebEHm R Of which fair value of
EELH ARG collateral and other credit

WATE enhancement 2,156,076 2,531,140 2,051,600 2,429,776
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Individually impaired loans

Individually impaired loans of the Group and the
Company before taking into account the cash flows
from collateral held and credit enhancement amounted
to HK$2,178,000 (2012: HK$2,197,000) and
HK$1,578,000 (2012: HK$2,197,000) respectively.

The fair value of related collateral held and credit
enhancement of the Group and the Company for
individually impaired loans amounted to HK$4,399,000
(2012: HK$8,175,000).

Repossessed properties

The Group and the Company obtained assets by taking
possession of collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as
practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the
outstanding indebtedness and are classified in the
statement of financial position within “Other assets”. If
excess funds arise after repayment of the outstanding
indebtedness, they are distributed to the beneficiaries
of the assets under the applicable laws.

Cash and short-term funds

According to the investment guidelines approved by
the Board of Directors, the Group can only place
deposits with note-issuing banks or banks with a
certain minimum credit rating. As at 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2012, the minimum acceptable
short-term credit ratings are A-2 (Standard and Poor’s),
P-2 (Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch).

Investment securities

According to the investment guidelines approved by
the Board of Directors, the Group can only invest in
debt securities with a certain minimum credit rating.
The proportion of investments according to rating
categories is monitored and reviewed by ALCO.
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The table below presents an analysis of debt securities
by rating designation as at the end of the reporting
period, based on external credit agency’s ratings
%558 FPTEDAT - B SF AR H (Standard and Poor's, Moody's and Fitch). In the
RBER - AERAZERETA absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the
HIREAR © issuers are reported.

qHtHEES BEEZESES
Available-for-sale  Held-to-maturity k]
R=B-=5+-R=1-H securities securities Total
The Group and the Company THR FAT TER
As at 31 December 2013 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FRERALT

AAA/AAa AAA/Aaa 384,003 2,159,071 2,543,074
AA- 2 AA+ /Aa3 E A AA-10 AA+/Aa3 0 A 2,015,252 4,984,285 6,999,537

A- EA+ /A3EAT A-t0 A+/A310 A1 542,650 1,417,239 1,959,889
FaEe] Total 2,941,905 8,560,595 11,502,500
At EES FEZISES

Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity k]
RZZE— securities securities Total
The Group and the Company TAT TEL THL
As at 31 December 2012 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA /Aaa AAA/AAa 952,959 2,396,837 3,349,796
AA- 2 AA+ /Aa3 £ Aal AA- 10 AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 1,256,388 5,280,188 6,536,576
A-EA+ /A3EAT A-t0 A+/A310 A1 284,983 1,560,783 1,845,766
FEEE] Total 2,494,330 9237,808 11,732,138
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest
rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed
to general and specific market movements and changes in
the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as
interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and
equity prices. The Group'’s exposures to market risk primarily
arise from the interest rate management of the entity’s
financial instruments of different repricing characteristics, or
from the net exposure of the foreign currency denominated
financial instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion
of its existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond
issuance using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate
swaps by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match
the floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net
exposure of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued
and the overseas residential mortgage loans by the use of
Cross-currency swaps as fair value hedges and economic
hedges respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken by
the Treasury Department using risk limits approved by the
Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate risk
management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives and debt markets in
accordance with the strategies laid down by ALCO. The
middle office monitors the compliance of risk limits and
performs stress tests to assess the potential size of losses
that could arise in extreme conditions. The results of the
stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.
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A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income
under different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the
negative impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis
points parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as at
31 December 2013 would decrease the future net interest
income for the next 12 months by less than HK$1 million
(2012: increase by around HK$1 million) and increase by less
than HK$1 million (2012: decrease by around HK$1 million)
for a similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2013, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit
for the year would have been higher by less than HK$1
million (2012: by less than HK$1 million) and the fair value
reserve would have been higher by around HK$5 million
(2012: less than HK$1 million) as at 31 December 2013. If
interest rates had experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift
upwards, profit for the year would have been lower by less
than HK$1 million (2012: by less than HK$1 million) and the
fair value reserve would have been lower by around HK$6
million (2012: less than HK$1 million).

As at 31 December 2013, with all other variables held
constant, if the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest
points against the US dollar, profit for the year would have
been around HK$11 million higher (2012: HK$11 million).
Conversely, if the HK dollar had strengthened by 100 price
interest points against the US dollar, profit for the year would
have been around HK$11 million lower (2012: HK$11 million).

As at 31 December 2013, with all other variables held
constant, if the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest
points against foreign currencies other than US dollar, profit
for the year would have been around HK$18 million higher
(2012: HK$18 million). Conversely, if the HK dollar had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against foreign
currencies other than US dollar, profit for the year would
have been around HK$18 million lower (2012: HK$18 million).
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As at 31 December 2013, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trust had decreased by 1%, the fair value
reserve would have been around HK$9 million lower (2012:
HK$33 million). Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded
funds and real estate investment trust had increased by 1%,
the fair value reserve would have been around HK$9 million
higher (2012: HK$33 million).

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rate,
exchange rates and market price for a 12-month period.

(@  Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on its
financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars,
British pounds, Australian dollars, euro and Japanese
yen. All foreign currency-denominated MTN debts are
fully hedged into either US dollars or Hong Kong
dollars.
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The Group

R-Z-=£+-A=+—H Asat 31 December 2013

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.

Hitroh
BT Other foreign ag
HKD currencies Total
TAx TEx TEx TEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BE Assets
BeREHES Cash and short-term funds 8,293,174 3,228,038 236,321 11,757,533
FEIH B RIEFR Interest and remittance receivables 215,585 123,378 29,837 368,800
BGEEE Assets held for sale - - 129,767 129,767
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 774,360 57,066 - 831,426
BRlAFE Loan portfolio, net 20,012,458 2,255,939 - 22,268,397
EHRE Investment securities;
—AfmE — available-for-sale 1,455,678 1,642,268 762,509 3,860,455
—HEZHH — held-to-maturity 2,934,264 4,419,131 1,207,200 8,560,595
ENTIE  HeRAMEE  Prepayments, deposits and
other assets 17,929 101 - 18,030
EEEE Fixed assets 44,085 - - 44,085
BRREE Reinsurance assets 180,742 - - 180,742
BELE Total assets 33,928,275 11,725,921 2,365,634 48,019,830
8 Liabilities
IS Interest payable 106,646 68,277 20,907 195,830
FERIRE « AR R Accounts payable, accrued
HipafE expenses and other liabilities 4,611,243 1,017 - 4,612,260
BEEEEGERENEE  Labilities directly associated with
assets held for sale - - 384 384
fTHEERTA Derivative financial instruments 785,458 - - 785,458
EHRERR Current income tax liabilities 144,665 - - 144,665
EENEAE Deferred income tax liabilities 57,156 - - 57,156
REaE Insurance liabilities 1,294,712 - - 1,294,712
BREIEBES Debt securities issued 14,205,142 8,485,416 8,664,627 31,355,185
BEES Total liabilities 21,205,022 8,554,710 8,685,918 38,445,650
BEFE Net position 12,723,253 3,171,211 (6,320,284) 9,574,180
BEAERINEGERAT  Off-balance sheet net notional
position* (14,229,537) 4,972,917 8,684,920 (571,700)
“ [EEBBRINFZEHR g "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the

BINETTESRMTIA(EZER
LURE AR SR BN B R E Ry 2
B2 ) B % & SRR EE N FER
ER e

© BEEREOEETNEER
T8 % [ 358 78 72 0 (6
BES -

difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

* Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of
HK$4 billion and Australian dollars of HK$3.5 billion.
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H it he
B %7 Otherforeign g
HKD UsD currencies Total

N T FhR TR THr
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W=B-=%£+-B=1—H Asat31December 2013

BE Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 8,291,123 3,228,038 236,321 11,755,482
FEl R 2 RES Interest and remittance receivables 206,189 123,378 29,837 359,404
fTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 774,360 57,066 - 831,426
ETHE T Loan portfolio, net 14,686,635 2,255,939 - 16,942,574
BHRE Investment securities:
— e — available-for-sale 1,455,678 1,642,268 762,509 3,860,455
—HEEHH — held-to-maturity 2,934,264 4,419,131 1,207,200 8,560,595
MEBARRE Interests in subsidiaries 5,192,190 - 102,060 5,294,250
BRFUE  REREMEE  Prepayments, deposits and
other assets 16,707 101 - 16,808
EEEE Fixed assets 44,085 - - 44,085
BREEE Reinsurance assets 181,053 - - 181,053
BEMAE Total assets 33,782,284 11,725,921 2,337,927 47,846,132
8f& Liabilities
FERF 2 Interest payable 106,646 68,277 20,907 195,830
FERIRIE « ERETR Accounts payable, accrued
HBfE expenses and other liabilities 4,611,711 1,017 - 4,612,728
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 785,458 - - 785,458
EHHERRE Current income tax liabilities 144,665 - - 144,665
EETBARE Deferred income tax liabilities 56,911 - - 56,911
ReBE Insurance liabilities 1,297,034 - - 1,297,034
BREIEBES Debt securities issued 14,205,142 8,485,416 8,664,627* 31,355,185
AEEE Total liabilties 21,207,567 8,554,710 8,685,534 38,447,811
BEEE Net position 12,574,717 3,171,211 (6,347,607) 9,398,321
BERERINFEEERT  Off-balance sheet net notional
position* (14,229,537) 4,972,917 8,684,920 (571,700)
& [BEBEBERNFREFER] # "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
EINEPTE SR TA(EER difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
BASHUAR 2N 2 T30 &5 M5 & i [ derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
B HEESERE N T(ELY reduce the Company’s exposure to currency movements and
=45 their fair values.
. A BRI0EB T M R B R * Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of
iiié% K35 THRITE HK$4 billion and Australian dollars of HK$3.5 billion.
77 °
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Ao
B % Otherforeign k]

HKD ush currencies Total
AEE T AL TAL THL
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WZZE——%+-F=1—H Asat31December 2012

BE Assets
ReLEHES Cash and short-term funds 8,424,927 746,380 544,237 9,715,544
FEUH| 8 R IEFR Interest and remittance receivables 278,110 157,079 34,401 469,590
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 1,303,778 139,235 - 1,443,013
EXHAAFE Loan portfolio, net 21,540,141 4,355,258 - 25,895,399
BHRE Investment securities:
—AfHE — available-for-sale 1,691,810 3,688,414 432,603 5,812,827
—BEZEHH — held-to-maturity 3,410,103 4,588,260 1,239,445 9,237,808
BT REREMEE  Prepayments, deposits and
other assets 39,601 - 40 39,641
EBE Fixed assets 29116 - 12 29128
BREEE Reinsurance assets 222,007 - - 222,007
AELE Total assets 36,939,593 13,674,626 2,250,738 52,864,957
BE Liabilities
FERH 2, Interest payable 128,050 82,926 24,780 235,756
FERIRE « ERETR Accounts payable, accrued
iEE expenses and other liabilities 4,463,882 716 518 4,465,116
TESBIA Derivative financial instruments 174,082 1,013 - 175,095
BHREAR Current income tax liabilities 101,464 - 123 101,587
EENEAE Deferred income tax liabilities 109,404 - - 109,404
RRAE Insurance liabilities 1,545,863 - - 1,545,863
BRIEBES Debt securities issued 17,731,198 10,727,312 7,946, 117* 36,404,627
BETREES Mortgage-backed securities issued 214,672 - - 214,672
AEEE Total liabilities 24,468,615 10,811,967 7,971,538 43,252,120
ERE Net position 12,470978 2,862,659 (5,720,800) 9,612,837
BEABRINFREHET  Offbalance sheet net notional
position* (13,519,119) 5,959,632 7,930,584 (28,903)
‘* [EEBBRINFZEFHR # "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
BINBITEEMTA(EER difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
BASBE 7S 52 [ 7 B 5 Eh A [ derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
BRIMBRTEERRAFED reduce the Group's exposure to currency movements and their
E# - fair values.
* BEEEFESEB TR R E o Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of
zfi R AOEBA TR R LA HK$2.5 billion and Australian dollars of HK$4 billion.
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HhroMg
%L Otherforeign

) currencies Total
Y UNG] oy TAT TET TEL
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RMZE——F+-A=F—H Asat31December 2012

BE Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 8,421,586 746,380 420,377 9,588,343
FEU R 2 RE Interest and remittance receivables 269,647 157,079 33,689 460,415
fTAESRIE Derivative financial instruments 1,303,778 139,235 - 1,443,013
BRds TR Loan portfolio, net 17,588 545 4,355,258 - 21,943,803
BHRE Investment securities:
—AfREE — available-for-sale 1,691,810 3,688,414 432,603 5,812,827
—HBZ5H — held-to-maturity 3,410,103 4,588,260 1,239,445 9,237,808
WBARLE Interests in subsidiaries 3,841,609 - 102,060 3,943,669
BRFUE  REREMEE  Prepayments, deposits and
other assets 46,520 - - 46,520
EEEE Fixed assets 29,116 - - 29,116
BREEE Reinsurance assets 222372 - - 222,372
BEEE Total assets 36,825,086 13,674,626 2,228,174 52,727,886
BfF Liabilities
JERA 2 Interest payable 127,980 82,926 24,780 235,686
FERIRE « ERETR Accounts payable, accrued
HipaE expenses and other liabilities 4,686,763 716 250 4,687,729
ITESBTA Derivative financial instruments 174,082 1,013 - 175,095
EHHERRE Current income tax liahilities 100,563 - = 100,563
EENERE Deferred income tax liabilities 109,103 - - 109,103
REE Insurance liabilities 1,548,076 - = 1,548,076
BREIEBES Debt securities issued 17,731,198 10,727,312 7,946, 117* 36,404,627
AEEE Total liabilties 24,477,765 10,811,967 7,971,147 43,260,879
HEEE Net position 12,347,321 2,862,659 (5,742,973) 9,467,007
BERERINFEEESRT  Offbalance sheet net notional
position* (13,519,119 5,959,632 7,930,584 (28,903)
& [BEBEBERNFREFER] # "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
EINEPTE SR TA(EER difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
BASHUAR 2N 2 T30 &5 M5 & i [ derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
B HEESERE N T(ELY reduce the Company’s exposure to currency movements and
=45 their fair values.
* BEEEBEABTHREE & Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of
G E 5 RAEB THRITE HK$2.5 billion and Australian dollars of HK$4 billion.
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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—-BANLE =@ANMLE —FEHE
E=f@A E-f BRE
—fEAR Over Over over TEMLE FEE

Upto 1monthto 3months  1yearto Over Non-interest #g
1month  3months  to1year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
KEH TEL TER TEL TiEn TR TR TR
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-B-=£+-f=1-
A As at 31 December 2013
BE Assets
RehEHEe Cash and short-term funds 3,301,620 1,019,067 7,060,241 - - 376,605 11,757,533
FEW R B RIER Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 368,800 368,800
BEBE Assets held for sale 129,342 - - - - 425 129,767
THEERT A Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 831,426 831,426
EXELFE Loan portfolio, net 18,603,163 3,603,914 23,491 35,994 1,835 - 22,268,397
BHRE Investment securities:
—AE — avallable-for-sale 217,074 571,488 1,214,741 938,602 - 918,550 3,860,455
—RBZIH — held-to-maturity 283,205 388,885 1,548,679 2,638,646 3,701,180 - 8,560,595
FEFE - 24 R A & EPrepayments, deposits and
other assets - - - - - 18,030 18,030
TEE Fixed assets - - - - - 44,085 44,085
BRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 180,742 180,742
BEGE Total assets 22,534,404 5,583,354 9,847,152 3,613,242 3,703,015 2,738,663 48,019,830
8% Liabilities
FERFIE Interest payable - - - - - 195830 195,830
FERIRIE  FEfRIX R  Accounts payable, accrued
HibEaE expenses and other liabilities 4,214,241 - - - - 398,019 4,612,260
HEELEERBENE Liabilities directly associated with
& assets held for sale - - - - - 384 384
fTHEERIEA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 785,458 785,458
EHREAE Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 144,665 144,665
EIEHBEAR Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 57,156 57,156
RBAERE Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,294,712 1,294,712
BRETERES Debt securities issued 4,910,174 9,766,814 4,801,547 9,349,443 2,527,207 - 31,355,185
RfaEg Total liabilities 9,124,415 9,766,814 4,801,547 9,349,443 2,527,207 2,876,224 38,445,650
FESRERDEE  Totalinterest sensitivity gap* 13,409,989  (4,183,460) 5,045,605 (5,736,201) 1,175,808
F=fTETA Interest rate derivatives (notional
(HASEMEELE)  amounts of net position) (5,627,543) (10,982,823) 4,732,875 9,019,265 2,286,526
L Rt ATTESRMTASESY & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
BEITEBESNZE - on the debt securities issued.
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—fEARE  ZEARE  -FHE
E=fiA B-f BRf

AR Over Over over EENE it
Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto Over Non-interest g
1month  3months  to1year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
ARF Tix TER TR TER TR TER TiEx
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZB-ZE+ZA=1-
] As at 31 December 2013
BE Assets
ReRESES Cash and short-term funds 3,300,018 1,019,067 7,060,241 - - 376,156 11,755,482
FEYR 8 RERK Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 359,404 359,404
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 831,426 831,426
EREAFE Loan portfolio, net 13,334,407 3,579,565 9,674 17,093 1,835 - 16,942,574
BHRE Investment securities:
— e — avallable-for-sale 217,074 571,488 1,214,741 938,602 - 918,550 3,860,455
—FAZIH — held-to-maturity 283,205 388,885 1,548,679 2,638,646 3,701,180 - 8,560,595
HBARARE Interests in subsidiaries 5,153,370 23,789 13,262 769 - 103,060 5,294,250
FANFE e REMEE Prepayments, deposits and
other assets - - - - - 16,808 16,808
EEAE Fixed assets - - - - - 44,085 44,085
BiRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 181,053 181,053
BEAR Total assets 22,288,074 5,582,794 9,846,597 3595110 3,703,015 2,830,542 47,846,132
=1 Liabilities
ERFE Interest payable - - - - - 195,830 195,830
JEMRIE MBI R Accounts payable, accrued
EthB R expenses and other liabilities 4,214,241 - - - - 398,487 4,612,728
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 785,458 785,458
EHRAEAR Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 144,665 144,665
ERRERE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 56,911 56,911
RBaE Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,297,034 1,297,034
BEMERES Debt securiies issued 4910174 9,766,814 4,801,547 9,349,443 2,527,207 - 31,355,185
RELE Total liabilities 9124415 9,766,814 4,801,547 9,349,443 2,527,207 2,878,385 38,447,811

FIESREROER Total interest sensitivity gap* 13,163,659  (4,184,020) 5,045,050  (5,754,333) 1,175,308

MEATETA Interest rate derivatives (notional
(FRFEMNEELR) amounts of net position) (5,627,543) (10,982,823) 4,732,875 9,019,265 2,286,526
* Rt APTESRTASEESY * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
BEITEBEFNTE on the debt securities issued.
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—FUE

f EF ERE
—fEAR Qver QOver Over  RFLE |
Upto  1monthto 3months 1year to Over  Non-interest
1month to 1year 5Yyears 5 years bearing
Nl BT T THx ST
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000
RIZ-—ZFE+ZA=1-
A As at 31 December 2012
BE Assets
ReRESES Cash and short-term funds 1,011,878 3,528,751 4,989,854 = = 185,061 9,715,544
BRI S RERR Interest and remittance receivables - - - = = 469,590 469,590
{TEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1443013 1443013
EARE Loan portfolio, net 24,657,088 1,169,067 36,512 23.9% 8736 - 2589539
BHRE Investment securities:
—AfHE — avallable-for-sale 868,060 973,117 653,153 - - 3,318,497 5812827
—HAZIH — held-to-maturity 124,520 8739 1552207 379510 3762772 - 9237808
BHE  BER Prepayments, deposits and
i EE other assets - - - - - 39,641 39,641
EFBE Fixed assets - - - - - 29,128 29128
BlRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 222,007 222,007
BESE Total assets 26,661,546 5,709,674 7,231,726 3,783,566 3,771,508 5706937 52,864,957
LS Liabilities
RIS Interest payable - - - - - 235,756 235,756
FERIRIE - MBS R  Accounts payable, accrued
HaR expenses and other liabilities 4,200,129 - - = = 264987 4465116
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 175,095 175,095
EEHEAR Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 101,587 101,587
ELFBAE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 109,404 109,404
RBRAE Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,545,863 1,545,863
BREIERES Debt securities issued 5973185 12124522 2136033 12,157,118 4,013,769 - 36,404,627
BETRIEES Mortgage-backed securities issued 214,672 - - - - - 214,672
RELE Total liabilities 10,387,986 1212452 236,033  12157,118  40137¢9 2432692 43,252,120
FEgRERDEE Total interest sensitivity gap* 16,273,560 (6,414,848) 5,095,693 (8,373,552) (242,261)
MEATETA Interest rate derivatives (notional
(BEFENAZEE)  amountsof net position) (8064538  (8973851) 2119000 11,610,162 3280324
RETATESRITASESY o before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
EEITEBEFNTE on the debt securities issued.
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—FhE
ZnF
—@AR 0 Qver REHNE :
Upto  1monthto 3 months 1year to Over  Non-interest |
1 month 3months t0 1year 5Yyears 5years bearing Total
Y YNG] THT BT
The Company HK$'000
RZE-—ZF+ZA=1-
=] As at 31 December 2012
BE Assets
ReRESES Cash and short-term funds 899,615 3,515,067 4,989,854 - - 183,807 9,588,343
FEWR| S RER Interest and remittance receivables - - - = = 460,415 460,415
TESBTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,443013 1,443013
Biiia 38 Loan portfolio, net 20713162 1,169,067 35,680 18871 7,023 - 21943803
BHRE Investment securities:
— e — avallable-for-sale 868,060 973,117 653,153 - - 3,318,497 5,812,827
—HAZIH — held-to-maturity 124,520 38739 1552207 3759570 3762772 - 9237808
WBARRE Interests in subsiciaries 3,838,132 - 810 - 1,667 103060 3943669
BARE BER Prepayments, deposits and
Hiv&E other assets 7,984 - - - - 38,536 46,520
EEEE Fixed assets - - - - - 29,116 29,116
BRBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 222372 222372
BESRE Total assets 26,451,473 5,695,990 7,231,704 3,778,441 3771462 5798816 52,727,836
A& Liabilities
ERHFS Interest payable - - - - - 235,686 235,686
JEMRIE MBI R Accounts payable, accrued
EthBfE expenses and other liabilities 4,410,603 - - - - 277,126 4,687,729
TESBTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 175,095 175,095
EHHIEARE Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 100,563 100,563
ERREGE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 109,103 109,103
ReaE Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,548,076 1,548,076
BEMERER Debt securities issted 5973185 1212452 2136033 12,157,118 4013769 - 36404627
RELE Total liabilities 10383788 12124522 2136033 12157118 4013769 2445649 43260879
FlEHREROEE Total interest sensitivity gap* 16,067,685 (6,428,532) 5,095,671 (8,378,677) (242,307)
MEATETA Interest rate derivatives (notional
(BRFENLZE42E)  amounts of net position) (8064538)  (8973851) 2119000 11610162 3,280,324
* RETAPTESRITASESY & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
BEETEBEFNTE on the debt securities issued.
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nBECREBRIERNEEREEELS
NEEIAREREAEBENE R
HESWER AEESRENES
MARRE -+ WA TAZIHHR
BERE EFREHEMESRA NI ©
AEBETRAE SRR T ERBE
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EEZESTHRHRBESRITET
HE o

@ RIFRBSREDN

TRINRAEER 2 HRARE
RRENFHREFITETA
TRBE NFREELEED
TETASRAERABEE
ERENTESRTIANES
mE - RABRENESRATRR
BHRRTRRSRE - BER
BERFHNAESNIIHAGE
BYRRF B SIS FRIA - AL M
HWITETEBRBRFRAEELR
HEH =4 HY A R R A R AL
EENEERE -

() SEOTETARE R

AEERAAT

The Group and the Company

R-B-=% As at 31 December 2013
+=A=t-H

8% Liabilities

BETERES Debt securities issued

3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being able
to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across
a full maturity spectrum. The Group has established
diversified funding sources to support the growth of its
business and the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of
liabilities. Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by
ALCO.

(@  Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by the
Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
and cross currency swaps that will be settled on gross
basis.

(i) Non-derivative cash outflows
—-HANLE =EAML —F0E

Z=fHA 2-F BRE
—-fEAR Over Over Over BENE

Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto Over aE
1month  3months  to1year 5 years 5 years Total
THER THET THET TARL THET THER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(1,617,632)  (2,412,076) (10,961,199) (15,330,240) (2,652,473) (32,973,620)
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—FE
B—F ZhE
—{EAR Over Over Over RENE
Upto  1monthto 3 months 1yearto QOver
1 month 3months to 1year 5 years 5Yyears Total
N1 ] THL T B THT T THL
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AZF——F As at 31 December 2012
+-A=1-H
A& Liabilities
BETEKES Debt securities issued (684,799 (3590319  (11,609,866)  (18,389,744)  (3,749,700)  (38,024,428)
BETRBES Mortgage-backed securities
issued (4,284) (210,656) = = = (214,940)

(689,083) (3,800,975  (11,609866)  (18389,744)  (3749,700)  (38,239,368)

—fEAR QOver Qver AFELE

Upto  1monthto 3 months 1year to QOver BE
1 month 3 months to 1year 5years 5 years Total
YN BT BT BT THLT T THr
The Company HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
W=E——F As at 31 December 2012
tZA=1-R
aE Liabilities
BETERESR Deht securities issued (684,799) (3590319  (11,609,866)  (18,389,744)  (3,749,700)  (38,024,428)
(i) TTEITEBELSHEACGE (i)  Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
)

—BANLE =Z@ANL —EHE
Z=fEA Z-F ZLE

8RR Over Over over  EENE
Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto Over ag
1month  3months  to1year 5 years 5 years Total
REERFAR TR THT TR Ti#x THT TR
The Group and the Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-B-=§ As at 31 December 2013
+=A=+-H
BTHIRELER Derivative financial
ITESRIA instrument settled:
—FREE — 0n net basis 913 (1,922) 4,957 (13,055) (10,507) (19,614)
—BEEE — 0N gross basis
ikt Total outflow (2,213,529)  (1,563,473)  (8,198,304) (6,787,875) (87,128) (18,850,309)
AR Total inflow 2,255,327 1,588,850 8,359,600 6,240,851 105,417 18,550,045

2,11 23,455 166,253 (560,079) 7,782 (319,878)
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—fEAR LENRE

Upto  Tmonthto  3months  1yearto Over
Tmonth  3months  to1year 5 years 5 years Total
7N R THT THr THL THT T THL
The Group and the Company HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
WZE-—=F As at 31 December 2012
+-A=t+-H
BT EEEER Derivative financial
ITESRIA: instrument settled:
—FERE — onnet basis (132 (4.957) 292 (2,087) (148) 7,616)
—BEEE — 0N gross basis
ikt Total outflow (1301924)  (253999)  (7471151)  (9979,682) - @1333119)
FARE Total inflow 1351759 258575 7567155 10312,3% - 21816965
9,703 40,774 95,307 330,557 (149) 476233
(i) EEBERINEA (iiiy  Off-balance sheet items
RZE—Z=Z%+=A There were no financial guarantees of the
=+—H ARAWE Company as at 31 December 2013. Financial
EEMMBER R guarantees of the Company as at 31 December
T——HF+A=+— 2012 amounting to HK$214,742,000 matured no
B A2E—FAEH later than one year.

OB ERMBE
214,742,000 7T

ERARBIFERAT —T—=FF% 169



HEBEIRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(by ZFHBADH (b)  Maturity analysis
TRBBEEHRARES LI The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
BRI ERE B2 EERE relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
BEAHT period at the end of the reporting period to the

contractual maturity date.

—EARE =EARE —FHE
Z=f@B E-F Z5%
WEES -BAR Over Over over HEENE

Repayable Upto 1monthto 3months 1yearto Over ERE aE

ondemand  1month 3 months to1year 5 years 5years  Undated Total

A5E Thx Thx ThL ThL ThR T T T
The Group HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

R-E-=%+-A=t+-H Asat31December 2013

EE Assets

HeREHES Cash and short-term funds 375,571 3,302,654 1,019,067 7,060,241 - - - 11,757,533

EFHA Loan portfolio 4,892 383,165 805,824 3,655,439 6,619,437 10,798,613 2,852 22,270,222

EHRE Investment securities

—AfnE — available-for-sale - 217,074 441,488 1,214,741 1,068,602 - 918,550 3,860,455

—HABZHE — held-to-maturity - 283,205 127,968 1,564,173 2,884,069 3,701,180 - 8,560,595

BREEE Relnsurance assets - - - - - - 180742 180,742
380,463 4,186,098 2,394,347 13,494,594 10,572,108 14,499,793 1,102,144 46,629,547

af Liabilities

RBREE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1294712 1,294,712

BETERES Deht securities issued - 1,584,192 2,267,698 10,576,556 14,399,532 2,527,207 - 31,355,185

- 1,584,192 2,267,698 10,576,556 14,399,532 2,527,207 1,294,712 32,649,897

S@EARE  -FNE
E-F Z1%
MRS  -@AR Over (I Over EEHNE

Repayable Upto 1monthto 3 months 1yearto Over BRE fam

ondemand  1month 3 months to1year 5 years 5years  Undated Total

ART ThT ThRT TERL TERL TERL THT FHET THET
The Company HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

W=ZF-=£+-A=1-H Asat31December 2013

BE Assets

ReREHEs Cash and short-term funds 373,520 3,302,654 1,019,067 7,060,241 - - - 11,755,482

iy Loan portfolio 4,648 363777 766,083 3476151 5633284 6,697,735 2,191 16,943,369

BHRE Investment securities

— S — available-for-sale - 217,074 441,488 1,214,741 1,068,602 - 918,550 3,860,455

—EHEHE — helo-to-maturity - 283,205 127,968 1,564,173 2,884,069 3,701,180 - 8,560,595

BRBRAE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 181,053 181,053
378,168 4,166,710 2,354,606 13,315,306 9,585,955 10,398,915 1,101,794 41,301,454

af& Liabilities

REERE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,297,034 1,297,034

BEIERES Debt securities issued - 1,584,192 2,267,698 10,576,556 14,399,532 2,527,207 - 31,355,185

- 1,584,192 2,267,698 10,576,556 14,399,532 2,527,207 1,297,034 32,652,219
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MEIE AR Over AERE

Repayable Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto Over BRE

on demand Tmonth  3months  to1year 5years 5years Undated

N TAL TATL BT T T 3 ST
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W=Z——FE+-F=+-8 Asat31December 2012

BE Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 18588 1,011,053 3528751 4,989,854 - - - 9715544
EFHA Loan portfolio 7,530 560,714 400245 2365120 11,967,442 10,595,458 2942 25,899,451
HFRE Investment securities
—AfHE — avallable-for-sale - 868060 678912 947,358 - - 3318497 5812827
o — held-to-maturity - U5 - \ST5497 3775019 3762772 - 9237808
BRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 222,007 222,007

193416 2564347 4607908 9,877,829 15742461 14358230 3543446 50,887,637

Liabilities

Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 154583 1545863
Debt Securities issued = 642,467 3423461 11,109,164 17,215,766 4,013,769 - 36,404,627
Mortgage-backed securities issued - 4,198 210474 - - - - 214,672

= 646665 3633935 11,109,164 17215766 4013769 1545863 38,165,162

—EBE
J F ERF
MEEE  —EAR Over Over Over R&EMNE

Repayable Upto Tmonthto  3months  1yearto QOver aRH

on demand Tmonth ~ 3months  to1year 5years  Undated

TAL T T 7 ; FHT

The Company HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

W=F——F+-A=+—H Asat31December 2012

BE Assets
ReREBES Cash and short-term funds 180602 902820 3515067 4,989,854 - - - 9588343
EFHA Loan portfolio 7,038 546,386 370268 2229903 11224860 7,566,496 2882 219473833
BHRE Investment securities
—AfHE — avallable-for-sale - 868060 678912 94738 - - 3318497 5812827
—REZHH — held-to-maturity - 12450 - 55497 3775019 3762772 - 9237808
BRBBE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 222,372 222,372
187,640 2441786 4564247 9742612 14999879 11329268 3543751 46,809,183
Aff Liabilities
H i FE Other payable - 12318 198,15 - - - - 210474
RRaE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1548076 1548076
BREIEBES Debt securities issued = 642,467 3423461 11,109,164 17,215,766 4,013,769 - 36,404,627

= 604,785 3621617 11,109,164 17215766 4013769 1548076 38,163,177
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3.5.

Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, assets held for sale, prepayments and
other assets, interest payable, accounts payable,
accrued expenses, liabilities directly associated with
assets held for sale and current income tax liabilities
are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve
months from the reporting date. Other assets and
liabilities included in the statement of financial position
are expected to be recovered or settled in a period
more than twelve months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$30 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility. The Facility
enables the Group to maintain smooth operation under
exceptional circumstances, so that it can better fulfil its
mandate to promote banking and financial stability in
Hong Kong.

Insurance risk

The main insurance business of the Group is the mortgage
insurance which provides cover to the Als for first credit
losses of up to 25%-30% of the property value of a
residential mortgage loan with loan-to-value ratio below 90%
at origination, or other thresholds as specified from time to
time. The Group also provides financial guarantee cover to
Als up to 50%-70% of the banking facilities granted to SMES
and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong and insurance cover
to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans originated by
such Als and secured on residential properties.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.
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For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is that
the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the
insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability about
the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified
portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by a
change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group has
developed a business strategy to diversify the type of
insurance risks accepted and within each of the key
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are a downturn of the
economy, a slump in the local property market and a low
mortality rate of borrowers. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of
claims and collateral value. A drop in property prices, where
the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance of
the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims. Low
mortality rate of borrowers means longer payout period and
larger loan balance will be over time. This will affect the
frequency and severity of claims as there is a risk of the
property value insufficient to cover the outstanding loan
balance in the future.

ERREIFERAT[ —T—=FFH% 173



HEBEIRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

174

AEBERA—EFENRBRERER
EEAHER - RERBETREME
ENARRRENR  AEEARER
BERERR - REBEIARENT
ERT BRI - NEB TR AR
TRER A RIR L P AR 8 ) B AR B MR
BRABREZH - BB DRIBR
RETE S AR - AKEETHEA
i BREREEZESHIENZER
B FHEIRBBRR AR MR
BEHREENE - AREEEHRE
ZEBRRAT - ERBIRHERA
BEOPBERERRE - AEEKEE
FABRENRERANEE - KM
EERER  ERERZHEHNE
RBEFEER FARNEFBEERA
REDIES - FAREERER - &2
ZRIBEFNBROILT RS EHIE
hiRet - ARHE & ER BERMEHE
RHNBAREMEHNER -

R=ZZ—=F+=-—A=+—8 - fiiks
B RIEAN1% » B AN 255 A5
LAVBBT(ZT——F 1 400878
T0) ° MHARB LR TR 1% » BIAFE
S A AN 400 BT (Z T — —4F -
4008 TT) °

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient provision is
set aside for meeting future claim payments, the Group
calculates technical reserves on prudent liability valuation
assumptions and the method prescribed in the regulatory
guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-share
reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers and
excess-of-loss reinsurance arrangement in an effort to limit
its risk exposure under the mortgage insurance business.
The Group conducts comprehensive assessment including
the financial strength and credit ratings of the mortgage
reinsurers in accordance with the approved selection
framework set by the Credit Committee. The approved
mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews. For
financial guarantee cover provided to Als, the Group relies
on the lenders’ prudent credit assessment on the borrowers
to mitigate default risk and any loss in the loan facility will be
shared proportionately between the Group and the lender on
a pari passu basis to minimise moral hazards. The mortality
assumptions of reverse mortgages are also reviewed on a
regular basis, to assess the risk of larger deviation between
the actual and expected operating results.

As at 31 December 2013, if combined ratio had increased by
1%, profit for the year would have been HK$4 million (2012:
HK$4 million) lower. If combined ratio had decreased by 1%,
profit for the year would have been HK$4 million (2012: HK$4
million) higher.
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Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@) Fair value estimation

The following table shows financial instruments
recognised at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels of fair value hierarchy have been
defined as follows:

o Quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (“Level 17);

. Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
from prices) (“Level 2"); and

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
(“Level 3").

Bl -
AEERAAT X YA
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
BR=B-=£+-A=+-H —#+-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2013 As at 31 December 2012
#-B -l fag F—E F_FE
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
TER TiEL TER T THT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
TESBTA Derivative financial instruments - 831,426 831,426 - 1,443,013 1443013
ftEEES Available-for-sale securities
—EBES — Debt securities 1,228,043 1,713,862 2,941,905 923,153 1,571,177 2,494,330
— HtES — Other securities 918,550 - 918,550 3,318,497 - 3,318,497
2,146,593 2,545,288 4,691,881 4,241,650 3,014,190 7,255,840
A Liabilities
THEERTE Derivative financial instruments - 785,458 785,458 - 175,095 175,095
WATERE BT AL, Debt securities issued
ATER(GIAESE  designated as at fair value
MEBTEEE S through profit or 10ss upon
initial recognition - 325,002 325,002 - 340,287 340,287
- 1,110,460 1,110,460 = 515,382 515,382
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No financial instrument was measured at fair value
using a valuation technique not supported by
observable market data (Level 3) as at 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2012.

There was no transfer between Levels 1 and 2 during
the year.

(i) Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask
price, the price within the bid-ask spread that is
most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.

(i) Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little
as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2.
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If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps
and currency swaps. These swaps are fair valued
using forward interests rates and forward
exchange rates, if applicable, from observable
yield curves.

Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.
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(b) WHUAFEFENESRMEE (b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not

MEaF measured at fair value

RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
FZTE—=—F+ZA=+— instruments not presented on the Group’s statement
H - RNEE W RN BMRA T of financial position at their fair values are not
REAFEEHEI e ITAN materially different from their fair values as at 31
IREEHEAFEZEEAT December 2013 and 31 December 2012 except for the
A - BREREBEREAFEES following financial instruments, for which their carrying
WemIAEIN - TRAEEAR amounts and fair values and the level of fair value
TEFENERIAZKRA hierarchy are disclosed below:

B A FERATFERE :

WZE-=%+ZA=t-H RZF—ZF+-A=1t-H
As at 31 December 2013 As at 31 December 2012

e N¥E IREIE

carrying Fair B ] - carrying Fair
amount value Level 1 Level 2 Amount value

ThEn TERL Thn TEx Thx TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

LREE Financial assets
EHRE Investment securities
—RAZIES — held-to-maturity 8,560,595 8,699,613 5,660,486 3,039,127 9,237,808 9,748 868
LREE Financial liabilities
BEREIERES Debt securities issued 31,030,183 31,030,855 - 31,030,855  36,064340 36,067,827
BER{TRIEES Mortgage-backed securities
issued - - - - 214,672 214243
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The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial
instruments:

(i)

(iif)

Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits.
The fair value of floating-rate deposits is the
carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
3 months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates for
debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities — held-to-maturity

Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on
market prices or broker/dealer price quotations.
Where this information is not available, fair value
has been estimated using quoted market prices
for securities with similar credit, maturity and
yield characteristics.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based
on quoted market prices. For those notes where
quoted market prices are not available, a
discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining
term to maturity.
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(v)  Mortgage-backed securities issued under the
MBS Programme

The aggregate fair values are calculated based
on quoted market prices. For those notes where
quoted market prices are not available, a
discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining
term to maturity.

(vi)  Other liabilities — deferred consideration

These represent the deferred consideration used
for credit enhancement on the mortgage loans
purchased from the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (the
Government) in December 2003 and January
2004 with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.

3.7. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the
statement of financial position, are:

o To comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (Financial
Secretary);

o To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders;

o To support the Group’s stability and growth;
° To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the

shareholders; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.
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Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the Group’s management in accordance
with the Guidelines on the Capital Adequacy Ratio
(“Guidelines”) issued by the Financial Secretary, by
reference largely to Basel Il risk-based capital adequacy
framework. The minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)
stipulated in the Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to
the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to
the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. Any breach
or likely breach of the Guidelines must be reported to the
Financial Secretary. During the year, the Group complied
with all of the capital requirement set out in the Guidelines
by the Financial Secretary.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR of the Group as at the end of the reporting
period.

A&z Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000
IR & A Retained profits 4,548,760 5,302,410
B\ [ & contingency reserve 1,213,827 977,773
H{th s Other reserves 169,775 316,484
JEFE 1A 2 Non-controlling interests 12,972 12,423
DA FEEZUREMRE  Allowance for loan impairment under
2R collective assessment 1,825 4,052
R Deductions (46,560) (20,122)
=N Total capital base 7,900,599 8,593,020
BT R E Capital Adequacy Ratio 21% 20.2%
ERREBEESERAT =% 181
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Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group enters into International Swap Dealers Association
master agreement with all counterparties for derivative
transactions where each party will be able to settle all
outstanding amounts on a net basis in the event of default of
the other party. The Group does not enter into other master
netting arrangement or similar agreements for derivative
transactions.

The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
the Group's statement of financial position but are subject to
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments. The
disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross and
net amounts, as well as provide additional information on
how such credit risk is mitigated.

KEERAAR
The Group and the Company

R=Z2-=f+-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2013

L HERIES
ERBRRE
HENLE
Related
amount not
set off

WIREE
Carrying
amounts
on the
statement
of financial
position
T#Ex
HK$'000

Related
amount not
amount set off
in the onthe inthe

Carrymg

statement e
of financial Net
position? amountt
THT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

statement
of financial
position
THT
HK$'000

statement et i
RTEE] Net
position* amount*
T THL
HK$'000 HK$'000

B EXFREAE B R P

HROSBAE BEDHE -

* FEIERFRAE BRSEC A
NRMESMEE BfE - BHERE
BN 58 FEY  HIWRAEEN
SRAE BENEREEELH -

SREE Financial assets
EENTEEBTANTE Positive fair values for financial
derivatives 831,426 (175,080) 656,346 1443013 (54,836) 1,388,177
SRER Financial liabilities
BYMTESBTANTE  Negative fair values for financial
derivatives 785,458 (175,080) 610,378 175,095 (54,836) 120,259
7 [FEEAE I REMEARRKEHNE & Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the statement of

financial position” represent the amounts of financial liabilities/assets
position that are subject to netting agreement or similar arrangements.

* Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject to
netting agreement or similar arrangements but the Group’s
counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
position with the Group to offset upon default.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1.

4.2.

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the income
statement, the Group makes judgements as to whether there
is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
of loans before the decrease can be identified with an
individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse
change in the payment status of borrowers in a group or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in
the group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets are determined by using valuation
techniques. Where valuation techniques (for example,
models) are used to determine fair value, they are validated
and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the area that created them. All models are
validated before they are used, and models are calibrated to
ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative
market prices. To the extent practical, models use only
observable data. Sensitivity analysis is set out in Note 3.3.
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4.3.

4.4,

4.5.
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4.3.

4.4,

4.5.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of
what is significant or prolonged requires judgement. In
making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the normal volatility in listed price. In addition,
impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of
deterioration in the financial health of the investment,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology,
and operational and financing cash flows.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances defined in HKAS 39 such as due to significant
deterioration of such investments or selling close to maturity,
it will be required to reclassify the entire class as available-
for-sale and measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

Profits tax

The Group is mainly subject to profits tax in Hong Kong.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for profits tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
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Segment analysis

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage business. Other
activities such as debt issuance to fund the mortgage purchase
and investment to reinvest the surplus funds from mortgage
receipt are considered ancillary to mortgage business. The Group
is also organised in such a way that performance is measured at
Group level in a single segment for mortgage business.

Although the mortgage business is managed as a single segment,
the mortgage business is located in three geographical areas,
namely Hong Kong, Korea and China. The segment for Hong Kong
includes mainly the mortgage business in Hong Kong. The segment
outside Hong Kong includes mortgage assets in Korea, and an
investment in a subsidiary in Shenzhen, China. The chief operating
decision maker assesses the performance based on geographical
segments.

The following tables represent revenue, profit and other
information for operating segments of the Group.

BB
BB Outside L]
Hong Kong Total
THT TET
HK$’000 HK$°000

Hong Kong
FER
HK$’'000

BE-E—=F Year ended 31 December 2013
+ZA=+—HIEE

A EBWA Interest income 840,807 61,439 902,246
MBS H Interest expense (230,306) (19,947) (250,253)
) BUA Net interest income 610,501 41,492 651,993
Eom iR & FEE Net premiums earned 476,956 - 476,956
HAmg A Other income 307,707 (10,237) 297,470
HET PN Operating income 1,395,164 31,255 1,426,419
B 2= ) 8% 5 58 Net claims written back 8,767 - 8,767
et F5E Net commission expenses (135,890) - (135,890)
LS Operating expenses (227,948) (7,095) (235,043)
RETRE AT AL 2 55 ) Operating profit before impairment 1,040,093 24,160 1,064,253
B SOR B B Write-back of loan impairment

allowances 3,545 - 3,545
BR 5 AT A Profit before taxation 1,043,638 24,160 1,067,798
A Taxation (85,214)
NEE A Profit for the year 982,584
FARAEARFS Capital expenditure during the year 32,720 - 32,720
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)

Hong Kong
FAT
HK$'000

EBLAGN
Qutside
Hong Kong
FHET
HK$'000

Rk
Total
FET
HK$'000

BEr—_T——F Year ended 31 December 2012
+—A=+—HLEFE

A EHA Interest income 1,019,858 115,504 1,135,362
MESH Interest expense (284,103) (39,160) (323,263)
EF S A Net interest income 735,755 76,344 812,099
BEmERE F5E Net premiums earned 533,536 - 533,536
E g A Other income 234,850 (2,379) 232,471
LT PN Operating income 1,504,141 73,965 1,578,106
AR [E#)F 58 Net claims written back 6,642 = 6,642
e B FE5E Net commission expenses (162,541) - (162,541)
RS H Operating expenses (204,045) (15,222) (219,267)
REDRERT A S & m A Operating profit before impairment 1,144,197 58,743 1,202,940
B FUR B B 5 Write-back of loan impairment

allowances 5,680 - 5,680
e EE R ALER Share of profit of a joint venture = 2,450 2,450
B %4 Bl v A Profit before taxation 1,149,877 61,193 1,211,070
IR Taxation (85,524)
REEm Profit for the year 1,125,546
FRERFAZ Capital expenditure during the year 11,982 = 11,982

58

Hong Kong
FHERT
HK$'000

BB
Outside
Hong Kong
FHE T
HK$'000

R-ZE—=F As at 31 December 2013

+=A=+-8
DIREE Segment assets 45,624,944 2,394,886 48,019,830
NEEE Segment liabilities 36,180,487 2,265,163 38,445,650

)

Hong Kong
FAT
HK$'000

EBLAGN
Qutside
Hong Kong
FET
HK$'000

Rk
Total
FETT
HK$'000

RN-_ZE—— As at 31 December 2012

+=—R=+—H
DEEEE Segment assets 48,366,698 4,498,259 52,864,957
DEEBEE Segment liabilities 38,878,093 4,374,027 43,252,120
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6. FIBUGA 6. Interestincome

AEE
The Group
2013 2012
THET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BERAEE Loan portfolio 428,498 584,044
BekEHE® Cash and short-term funds 139,153 213,263
BAEEE — Em Investment securities — listed 206,139 203,331
BHIEE —FLEm Investment securities — unlisted 128,456 134,724
902,246 1,135,362
7. FIEXZH 7. Interest expense

%M
The Group

2013
THxT
HK$'000

AR TAFERNBEERNIRITER - Bank loans, debt and MBS issued
BEITER MIZBES wholly repayable within 5 years 238,945 305,913
BERAFANBHEEZNE T Debtissued not wholly repayable
BEIFESH within 5 years 11,308 17,350
250,253 323,263
REEMELZTHBIE249EBBT(ZE—= Included within interest expenses are HK$249 million (2012:
F 3218 70) WA FEZ Lt A= HK$321 million) for financial liabilities that are not at fair value
WEemarlE - through profit or loss.
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8. IHIBRIENRIBRERMIZIIMIR 8. Revenue account for mortgage insurance and
guarantee business

KEE
The Group
2013 2012
TET TFETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERE (Hi7E (@) A aE29()) Gross premiums written
(Note (a) and Note 29(a)) 318,053 556,885
BIRERE (FizE29a) Reinsurance premiums (Note 29(a)) (43,414) (112,347)
R & 558 (MiFE29()) Net premiums written (Note 29(a)) 274,639 444,538
RmER B KR A F 58 Decrease in unearned premiums, net 202,317 88,998
BEmHR B )F 5 (FI5E29(a)) Net premiums earned (Note 29(a)) 476,956 533,536
FA R [ BOFRA (fi5E 29(h)) Net claims written back (Note 29(b)) 8,767 6,642
BiErDmERE TR Net premiums earned after provisions 485,723 540,178
BeI Commission expenses (154,125) (188,910)
BREARNASSH Reinsurers’ share of commission
expenses 18,235 26,369
e gunpe k-t Net commission expenses (135,890) (162,541)
HBRERRZ RIS M Net premiums earned before
REF5 management expenses 349,833 377,637
BRI (5 (D) Management expenses (Note (b)) (47,040) (26,450)
AR S Underwriting gains 302,793 351,187
B 5E - Notes:
(@) EREBEFERBRIBRIERER - NN EBHKE (@) Gross premiums were mainly derived from mortgage insurance cover on
PN RIFEETEEERNERE RLEIR mortgage loans with a small portion of guarantee fees written from guarantee
BHRE © business on loans to SMEs and non-listed enterprises and premiums written

from mortgage insurance cover on reverse mortgage loans.

(b) EERATAMNFI0EET HMN—3H - (b) Management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 10.
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HauA 9. Other income

rEH
The Group
2013 2012
F#&xT FHT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
REENER KBTI Early prepayment fees and late charges 2,362 5,059
bEE o, =58 Exchange difference 72,320 29,937
ST EANFEED)FHE Net change in fair value of financial
instruments (384) 12,850
A HE ETRE AR SURA Dividend income from available-for-sale
listed investments 89,077 90,135
HERE M F5E (EE12) Net gains on disposal of investments
(Note 12) 135,737 90,260
HEAERFIEE W Gain on disposal of investment in a
joint venture - 7,137
Hith Others (1,642) (2,907)
297,470 232,471
FRTARAFEZSRENATZENE Change in fair value of financial instruments represented the
M:OEEARFEEHNE P TARTF aggregate of (i) HK$1,188 million fair value loss on hedging
BEEBNSEET(ZE—Z_F 1785 instruments designated as fair value hedge (2012: HK$170 million)
TC) R A ERTE B AFEWKE 11.97 BB T and HK$1,197 million fair value gain on the hedged items (2012:
—E——F 1811EBL)  RiTHFE HK$181 million); and (i) HK$37 million fair value loss on derivatives
KRS AENTETARATEEE not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2012: HK$7
37008 B (=T — =& : 570084 7T) million gain) and HK$28 million fair value gain on debt securities
MIEEARFESE( LT ABRHNERITE issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2012:
BEHSAFEKZ2808F L (=T —= HK$5 million loss).

£ FEIBS008EHETT) o
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10. &N 10. Operating expenses
AEH
The Group
2013 2012
TFHET FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEKA Staff costs
e MEF Salaries and benefits 135,476 135,497
RIRES A — A EHAKEE Pension costs — defined contribution
plans 8,255 7,458
NS Premises
e Rental 25,183 19,618
Hfth Others 13,472 8,747
E=Me Directors’ emoluments - -
e (HIE26) Depreciation (Note 26) 17,763 14,127
B & 2T RS Financial information services 6,029 5,756
EERE Consultancy fees 8,575 7,547
E gt Other operating expenses 20,290 20,517
235,043 219,267
11. EEEHEN £ 11. Auditor’s remuneration
AEE
The Group
2013 2012
THET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EZRTE Audit services 1,404 1,366
H b AR 7% Other services 1,132 433
2,536 1,799
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12. HEREHWEEFEEA 12. Net gains on disposal of investments

rEE
The Group
2013 2012
FHT FHET
HK$’'000 HK$'000
HERE MRS Net gains on disposal of investments:
— Z#EN—A—BHERFEEA — realisation of amounts recognised in
HERR Y k1A (MH5E 33) reserves up to 1 January (Note 33) 295,593 38,230
—AFEEL(BB) WaEFE — net (losses)/gains arising in
current year (159,856) 52,030
135,737 90,260
13. ERBEEIE 13. Write-back of loan impairment allowances
TEH
The Group
2013
FExT
HK$'000
ERURE B 5 Write-back of loan impairment allowances
— &S (FEE21(0) — collective assessment (Note 21 (b)) 3,545 5,680
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14. B8 14. Taxation

(a) MEFESWERPINBRMBIES : (a) Taxation charge in the consolidated income
statement represents:

REH
The Group
2013 2012
F#ET FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB G Hong Kong profits tax
— & HAPTIS R — Current income tax 82,715 81,940
— BAEFERE — Adjustment in respect of prior years (11) (14)
82,704 81,926
&8 AN I Taxation outside Hong Kong
— BEHAREH — Current income tax 554 521
EETIE Deferred taxation
— RFEEX M — Charge for current year 1,956 3,077
85,214 85,524
B FE E A Rl 5 FE R B s AR Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5%( —F — —4F : 16.5%) B Fi X (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
STRBABNETRME - HREBT BN For subsidiary operating outside Hong Kong, tax rate
INEERTB AR - SIRAMERRYE prevailing in the relevant country is used. Deferred taxation
BEANTEGFE - BLEHIBEUAE is calculated in full on temporary differences under the
E165% (= F — —F : 16.5%) Ay liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% (2012:
FERRFELHNGRESE - 16.5%).
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REENG AR ARIEEE
BHEHENERSENZRNT

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

REME
The Group
2013
FHExT
HK$'000
R 35 Al g A Profit before taxation 1,067,798 1,211,070
1£16.5% (—ZZF—_% : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
LR ETE (2012:16.5%) 176,187 199,827
WIS 2 Tax effect of:
— BIEEERR A — share of profit of a joint venture - (404)
— BB LI TR R — different tax rate outside
Hong Kong 166 183
— AT AU — income not subject to taxation (105,608) (135,314)
— A HFA R — expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 14,480 21,246
— BAEFERHE — adjustment in respect of prior years (11) (14)
BIEkH Taxation charge 85,214 85,524
(b) BEABMRATRANBIEEES : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial

position represents:

ES L]
The Group

PN

The Company
2013
THET
HK$'000

2012
TAET
HK$'000

2013
TERT
HK$'000

2012
T8
HK$'000

EHHIBEE Current income tax assets
(BN TEMEE]A) (included in "Other assets”) 1,222 - - =
EHFHIBEARG Current income tax liabilities 144,665 101,587 144,665 100,563
EEFEAE Deferred income tax liabilities 57,156 109,404 56,911 109,103
201,821 210,991 201,576 209,666

N-Z—=F+-A=t—-AR=-%
——#+=-A=+—0 - HELAE

RARBBELEHIA °

There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

ERREIFERAT[ —T—=FFH®% 193



HEBEIRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EERIE (BE),/ AEREZARE The major components of deferred income tax (assets)/
D RERNEFHOT ¢ liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:
REE
The Group
HERE
MEHIERE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances AYELE BEmE
tax and Fair value Cash flow fag
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total
THL THL THBT AL T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-E——%—-f—H As at 1 January 2012 5,046 (9,468) 59,711 2.617) 52,672
g R AR Charged to the income statement 19 3,058 - - 3,077
NERSAG (F3533)  Charged to equity (Note 33) - - 52748 907 53,655
WZZ—_fF As at 31 December 2012
+-A=1+-8 5,065 (6,410) 112,459 (1,710) 109,404
RE R AR Charged to the income statement 403 1,553 - - 195
PMEZS R (F13133)  Charged to equity (Note 33) - = (54,908) 704 (54,204)
RZB-=f& As at 31 December 2013
+ZA=t-H 5,468 (4,857) 57,551 (1,006) 57,156
b N
The Company
HERE
MEBEHRE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances ATEEE REmE
tax and Fair value Cash flow fg
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total
BT T THT THL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE——%—H—H As at 1 January 2012 5,046 (9,444) 59,711 2.617) 52,696
g R AR Charged to the income statement 19 2733 = - 2,752
PMEZS AN (F13£33)  Charged to equity (Note 33) - - 52,748 907 53,655
RZZT—_&F As at 31 December 2012
+-A=1+-H 5,065 (6,711) 112,459 (1,710) 109,103
R AR Charged to the income statement 403 1,609 - - 2,012
IMER A (FF3£33)  Charged to equity (Note 33) - - (54,908) 704 (54,204)
RZB-=% As at 31 December 2013
+=A=t-H 5,468 (5,102) 57,551 (1,006) 56,911
RTZ@AA - |BEMERNELERIE There is no significant amount of deferred income tax assets/
BE/BEEBEWNE L liabilities to be settled within 12 months.
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15. RKEFEiRF 15. Profit for the year

XRAa M BEREIEBEAFE & The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements of
F £956,250,000% ( = T — = F: the Company to the extent of HK$956,250,000 (2012:
1,097,537,000/&7T) ° HK$1,097,537,000).

16. &2 16. Dividends

NN
The Company

2013 2012
TR TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

R AL B AR @A 0.2578 7t Proposed ordinary dividend of HK$0.25

—F——4F :037/5%7T) (2012: HK$0.375) per ordinary share 500,000 750,000
BRI S AR L @Ak 057  Proposed special dividend of HK$0.5
(ZE—ZF: &) (2012: nil) per ordinary share 1,000,000 =
1,500,000 750,000
RZE—=FM_ZFT——FEHH=Z The dividends paid in 2013 and 2012 in respect of 2012 and 2011
——EM=—E——EERES B A7 EE were HK$750 million (HK$0.375 per ordinary share) and HK$350
T (FRE @A 0.37578 1) R 35 BB T (& million (HK$0.175 per ordinary share) respectively. The directors
A& I @BAR0.1758 L) e R=ZZ—WMF M A proposed, in respect of 2013, an ordinary dividend of HK$0.25 per
+H EEESER T ——FTLERE ordinary share and a special dividend HK$0.5 per ordinary share
49 A% 37 A% 0.25 7 7T M 4 RIS B A AR X E on 7 April 2014. The proposed dividends are not reflected as
BRO5ETT - HEESRERNBEIBE - BIKR dividend payables until approval by shareholders.

BN SRS

17. IREREHES 17. Cash and short-term funds
AES ¥ NG
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
THERT FHET FHER FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R1TIR & Cash at banks 375,571 185,886 373,520 180,602
SRITEETER Time deposits with banks 11,381,962 9,529,658 11,381,962 9,407,741

11,757,533 9,715,544 11,755,482 9,588,343
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RAEESRERMNE  RERERRLIEE For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
BEATERS B HE =8N equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three
HEER o months’ maturity from the date of transaction.
rEE KAF
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT THT TERT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HITHES Cash at banks 375,571 185,886 373,520 180,602
SRITE TR Time deposits with banks 1,443,654 1,018,243 1,443,654 896,326
HeRZRIAELER Cash and cash equivalents 1,819,225 1,204,129 1,817,174 1,076,928
R-F-—Z=F+-A=t—HNRERF Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2013 included
FERSIEER @ BREFRNDEEEERETE guarantee fee of HK$309,333,000 (2012: HK$140,241,000) received
THENEEREMBKINERE under the special concessionary measures of the SME Financing
309,333,000 7L (=& — =4 : 140,241,000 Guarantee Scheme (Note 28).

BIr) (MIFE28) °

18. FEMCHI B REERR 18. Interest and remittance receivables
TEE b NG|
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FBT FHT FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LA T & 18 6 e U 1) 22, Interest receivable from
— R EE L — interest rate swap contracts 178,665 223,426 178,665 223,426
—EBHRE — investment securities 87,611 99,950 87,611 99,950
— RITEHER — time deposits with banks 18,414 20,857 18,414 20,146
B AR ERF B R Interest receivable and
2B R instalments, in transit from
loan portfolio 84,110 125,357 74,714 116,893

368,800 469,590 359,404 460,415
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HEEE 19. Assets held for sale

REGAEEZIFTEMSENFE K& In the light of the need for the Group to focus on the Hong Kong
EiITEZR S AL ERIEBRRIRIICER market, the Group intended to phase out its subsidiary, Bauhinia
EREREREBRAFNEE - HREEE HKMC Corporation Limited (‘“BHKMC"). The assets and liabilities of
%IS FIRZZE—=F+RA#tE#%R  RIIK the BHKMC were classified as held for sale following regulatory

AEMEERERATNEEMNEE %)i approval in December 2013. The Group completed the sale of all
/‘*57%%’% BE -BEALELHERZ its equity in the BHKMC on 24 January 2014.

—mE—-—HFZ+TMARK -

KEE
The Group
2013 2012
THxT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
() FEEE (@) Assets held for sale:
HehEHES Cash and short-term funds 129,342 =
EUF B M EMEE Interest receivables and other assets 425 =
R4 2 = g & R Total assets of the BHKMC
ﬁ RARIMEELRRE 129,767 —
() BEFEEEAERENA®E (b Labilities directly associated with

assets held for sale:

FERIIRIB R B FAX Account payable and accrued
expenses 234 =
EHTIEAG Current income tax liabilities 150 =
RN %a%%%ﬂ’éﬁ%% Total liabilities of the BHKMC
BER NG A ELRE 384 —
) FEEEREMEEWE (c) Cumulative income recognised in
IR 25T IEs other comprehensive income

relating to the assets held for sale:

FE H Translation reserve 13,104 -
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20. FTAESRTH

198

(a)

FERETATR

AEBRATITET RS AEE
HY & Bl B

EEEANEERLSA-ERSRER
M7 —HRERENAGE - FFHER
BN RN ME A R EE R -
BRETERERIN EZI“%T/%/F&
BAE - ARENEERBR AR
%ﬁ?%ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂé%@
HBEKRA - AERE2ERTRF
B BESNBAELLY - RHSHR
BEFEEAEMAR

ETRESRTANERESE AR
BB RO R R T A SRt — (AL &
HEZE - MR A R BR S Ko ) AR SRER &
MENSRAKXTAERNATE B
It - 30 BE IR BR AN 6% 8 T il 1O 5 & 3K
EBRER - BEETSME RERRY
HIGRERE) - STET A RS
l@iﬁﬂ(éﬁ)i?\ﬂ(ﬁ%)ﬁ@
FE - ETHIANGHRERD
B DRBMNXAFFERE
RTETESREERABZATA
B - AR TR ARKE - PIRFE T
ETARFEHENTX -

20. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivative

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to
hedge the Group's financial risks.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates or a
combination of all these. No exchange of principal takes
place except for certain currency swaps. The Group's credit
risk represents the potential cost to replace the swap
contracts if counterparties fail to perform their obligations.
This risk is monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to
the current fair value, a proportion of the notional amounts
of the contracts and the liquidity of the market.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial
instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments
recognised on the statement of financial position but do not
necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to
their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amounts
of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus
the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The
fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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FEERALT
The Group and the Company

254H AVE % NVE
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notional BE =1 notional BE =15
amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Liabilities
Ti#n THT TR BT T THLT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

() 7FEARRHResE () Derivatives not qualified as hedges

MHTETA for accounting purposes
Gip st Interest rate swaps 2,489,997 26,087 (1,313) 3494637 54,383 (a,581)
et Currency swaps 1,916,749 11,574 - 3491405 19.421 -
37,661 (1,313) 73804 (4,547
(i) ATEHMTETE (i) Fair value hedge derivatives
Flkit Interest rate swaps 14,982,375 631,659 (24,300) 16785925 1226686 (252
Kt Currency swaps 16,689,049 162106  (759,841) 17,464,320 142,523 (170,302)
793765  (784,145) 1,369,209 (170,554)
EHRATAETREE/ Total recognised derivative
(BF) a8 assets/(labiliies) 831,426  (785,458) 1443013 (175,095)
(b) ¥ihiEEH (b) Hedging activities
WHTE TR AR T EE R IR E ML Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
P REREREME - ARKFEE they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. The Group’s
B c REBM AT EESHREER fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate and
EEARNREREETESESFATE currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk
B (E (] 711 2 B) BT S| B A1) 2= [ fg A1 and foreign currency risk resulting from any potential change
SMNERRAFEMEERE - RZF in fair value of underlying debt securities issued. There were
—=F+ZA=+—HERZZE—Z=F no derivatives designated as cash flow hedges as at 31
+=—A=1+—8 ' AEEIETIUR December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

EREPITAETR -
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21. ERESFEHE 21. Loan portfolio, net
(a) ERBASEIEE (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
rEH NG
The Group The Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
TET FHT TET TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

e )= | Mortgage portfolio

F=E Residential

—&E — Hong Kong 16,198,898 16,530,736 10,891,390 12,584,243
— B — QOverseas 2,255,939 4,355,258 2,255,939 4,355,258
[EES Commercial 3,000,000 4,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000
FRIBEREE Non-mortgage portfolio 815,385 1,013,457 796,540 1,008,332
22,270,222 25,899,451 16,943,869 21,947,833

BUREREE Allowance for loan
impairment (1,825) (4,052) (1,295) (4,030)

22,268,397 25,895,399 16,942,574 21,943,803

R ERBRREERES HARE
Ezliﬁmﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂﬁn EEanT

Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as
follows:

REME AT

The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012

ERRERELERERG Total allowance for loan

EFMEABENESE  impairment as a
percentage of the
gross loan portfolio

0.01% 0.02% 0.01% 0.02%
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(b) RBERAESHERBERE

(b) Allowance for loan impairment on loan portfolio

REH b N
The Group The Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

FEx FHET FTRx FET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HETE Collective assessment

n—A—H As at 1 January 4,052 7,622 4,030 7,478
MUz &= B E (FfsE13) Released to income

statement (Note 13) (3,545) (5,680) (4,508) (5,558)

WEHE R Loans written off (455) = - =
U el 2 i35 & X Recoveries of loans

previously written off 1,773 2,110 1,773 2,110

Nt+=-—A=+—H As at 31 December 1,825 4,052 1,295 4,030

EREFRERER  EZRERE
HHOEHREWERITHE - RZT—=
FH+ZA=t+—HRZZF——-F+=
A=+—8  WEREINREEERS
ERAE L RERE -

LA A HEMERE REER D
T :

Allowance for loan impairment was made after taking into
account the current market value of the collateral of the
delinquent loan. No allowance for loan impairment was
provided for overseas and commercial mortgage portfolio as
at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

Individually impaired loans collectively assessed on a
portfolio basis are analysed as follows:

REE PN
The Group The Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

FEx FiET FRx FET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

MEERAS AR Gross impaired loan portfolio 2,178 2,197 1,578 2,197
BN ERE Allowance for loan

impairment (523) (380) (62) (380)

1,655 1,817 1,516 1,817
ERREREERE Allowance for loan

ERAaRENENL

impairment as a

percentage of gross
impaired loan portfolio 24.0% 17.3% 3.9% 17.3%

BEEHRAES %ﬂﬁ

e
ERMaRBEnNE

Gross impaired loan portfolio
as a percentage of gross
loan portfolio

0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01%
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REH b /N
The Group The Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
TR THET TR TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

A& T ARG A] Allowance for loan
BRI B R E R impairment under

FTEEZURERE collective assessment for
loans not individually
identified as impaired 1,302 3,672 1,233 3,650
(c) ERESHHNMEHEREF (c) Netinvestments in finance leases included in loan
2] portfolio

FEEREAT
The Group and the Company
2013
REEREL R RIEEWRBEL

MIEERE FIE WA MIBHEEE
Present value Interest Total

of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
THET TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT BRfE e M FR0E Amounts receivable:

——FR — within one year 72,654 14,344 86,998
——FRERFA — after one year but within

five years 250,512 44,569 295,081

— L% — after five years 473,374 53,573 526,947

796,540 112,486 909,026
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TRAT BRI AR

REBRAAH
The Group and the Company

2012

R R ER R 6
FEWA
Interest
income
relating to
future
periods
THT
HK$'000

RIEERIAEL
FIRRE
Present value

RIREUAA
FIBMBEE
Total
minimum
lease
payments
receivable
FET
HK$'000

of minimum
lease
payments
receivable
FHT
HK$'000

Amounts receivable:

——FR — within one year 89,919 18,210 108,129
——FREAFA — after one year but within

five years 312,425 56,765 369,190

—REE% — after five years 605,988 68,806 674,794

1,008,332 143,781 1,152,113

RZE—=F+_A=+—HEK=ZF
——F+-_A=+—H FTERRE
AERWHRIBEEL SR ERERE -

22. :BHKRE
(a) TT{EHEES

BAFEIIROERE S

No allowance for loan impairment was provided for finance
lease receivable as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012.

22. Investment securities
(a) Available-for-sale securities

AEBRAAF]
The Group and the Company
2012
FHIT
HK$'000

2013
T
HK$'000

Debt securities at fair value

REE LT Listed in Hong Kong 378,506 =

REBZIN ™ Listed outside Hong Kong 192,439 334,014

L™ Unlisted 2,370,960 2,160,316
A FESIR A E b F 5 Other securities at fair value

RES LT Listed in Hong Kong 918,550 3,318,497
A & R 57 e Total available-for-sale securities 3,860,455 5,812,827

HitB SR ZMEEES MEHE
RERGERESR -

Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trust.
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204

RETHEREN T EEEBZEHD Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of
T issuers as follows:
REBRADT
The Group and the Company
2013 2012
FHET FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITREA S RIS Banks and other financial institutions 2,365,122 1,834,625
NEERE Public sector entities - 295,448
oI A Central government 385,219 364,257
HAith Others 1,110,114 3,318,497
3,860,455 5,812,827
A A B DR T The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised
as follows:
EEBREAT
The Group and the Company
2013 2012
THET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Kn—H—H As at 1 January 5,812,827 2,303,703
bRyl Additions 5,277,911 4,161,064
HERER Sale and redemption (7,206,184) (1,011,501)
et s Amortisation (1,346) 4,535
N EEE) Change in fair value (37,853) 357,875
HNEE[E 5, 2= BE Exchange difference 15,100 (2,849)
Rt+t—A=+—H As at 31 December 3,860,455 5,812,827
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(b) HEEINES (b) Held-to-maturity securities

REBERARRD T
The Group and the Company

2013 2012
FTERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

R S A AN IR A (B 75 78 5 Debt securities at amortised cost

REB L™ Listed in Hong Kong 2,739,543 2,532,909

REBIRIN TR Listed outside Hong Kong 2,916,290 2,953,324

5,655,833 5,486,233

JEE™ Unlisted 2,904,762 3,751,575

BEZRIHBSF B Total held-to-maturity securities 8,560,595 9,237,808
EmEAENTE Market value of listed securities

—REEIH — held-to-maturity 5,768,239 5,815,111

RETHBENIDTHEZ I HEZS Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of
mr issuers as follows:
REBREARD T

The Group and the Company

2013 2012

FHET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

RITRE A S B TE Banks and other financial institutions 4,568,711 5,120,077

NGRS Corporate entities 2,455,718 2,043,777

NEHNE Public sector entities 765,168 1,267,853

AR B Central governments 550,742 767,362

HAit Others 220,256 38,739

8,560,595 9,237,808
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REZIMFESFNEHBAIT - The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised
as follows:
REBRADT
The Group and the Company
2013 2012
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Rn—A—A8 As at 1 January 9,237,808 8,269,148
40 Additions 2,054,866 1,926,101
HEKER Sale and redemption (2,761,350) (957,690)
B Amortisation (8,713) (12,520)
HNEEFE 2= RE Exchange difference 37,984 12,769
Wt+=—BA=1+—H As at 31 December 8,560,595 9,237,808
23. MBATIRE 23. Interests in subsidiaries
RKAF
The Company
2013 2012
FH&xT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEEMRG - KANE Unlisted shares, at cost
ERRBEEEGREAN A HKMC Mortgage Management Limited 1,000 1,000
R EREREREAR AT Bauhinia HKMC Corporation Limited
(FE) (held for sale) 102,060 102,060
103,060 103,060
IEINGIE S E Due from a subsidiary 5,191,190 3,840,609
5,294,250 3,943,669
B 88 2 B PR SRIB AR I I AR E e R The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured and has no fixed
WIRTHMEETE ° term of repayment. Interest is charged at market rates.
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R_EBE—=F+-A=+—0 FZWE The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013
NRIMFBRT : are:
A AR 3L BRT/BEMBRAFE Fris B R R
Place of TEER Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation Principal activities registered capital equity held
BEEBEERR AR BB BAREERRBER 1,000,000 7T 100%
BiREBREE AT
HKMC Mortgage Management Hong Kong Mortgage purchases HK$1,000,000 of HK$1 100%
Limited and servicing ordinary share each
RNCEREHEERBRAR H REERERES AR EEE AR 90%
Bauhinia HKMC Corporation PRC Mortgage guarantee RMB100 million registered 90%
Limited business capital
24, EEATHE 24. Investment in a joint venture
REE
The Group
2013
FHET
HK$°000
n—HA—H As at 1 January - 130,045
HIBR R I8 18 FE 4 89 )% £ Share of profit, net of tax - 2,450
HNEERE H 2= 58 (FYFE33) Exchange differences (Note 33) - 5,276
HihEs e — A FERE Other equity movement — fair value
(PFF5E33) reserve (Note 33) - (32)
HEAERNRIKRE Disposal of investment in a joint venture - (137,739)
R+—-_A=+—H As at 31 December - -
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RZE—ZF+/ AEEEHKLEE
ENERATRBRBEREREBNEG
& /A 7] Cagamas HKMC Berhad &9 Ft & #&
@ BeNREBI17BB T HEZXEEA
RIMEEMAGBHT :

In December 2012, the Group completed the disposal of all its
interest in a joint venture, Cagamas HKMC Berhad, with the
principal activities of mortgage guaranty business in Malaysia, at a
cash consideration of HK$137 million with the following assets and
liabilities of the joint venture disposed of:

TAT
HK$'000

mENE E Current assets 138,221
mENEE Current liabilities (482)
HER)FEE Net assets disposed of 137,739
FREMME KU A T E R (52 33) Cumulative exchange gain and fair value reserves

(Note 33) (7,733)
& e Gain on disposal 7,137
KRB Consideration 137,143

25. EftRIE - REREMEE

25. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

REE ¥ YN
The Group The Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

FTET THET TET FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

I & = Repossessed assets 1,590 2,024 1,590 957

NAEEEH Corporate club debentures 750 750 750 750
AHEERE(EH) Dividend receivable from

JE W B B available-for-sale

investments (listed) - 22,185 - 22,185

Hfth e 508 Other receivable - - - 7,984

HAh Others 15,690 14,682 14,468 14,644

18,030 39,641 16,808 46,520

E b e U 3008 2 £ 48 Bauhinia MBS Limited
LAKE BB B AL Rt Bl BT IR IBE 5 -

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Li

Other receivable represented the amount drawn by Bauhinia MBS
Limited for the redemption of the MBS issued under the MBS
Programme.
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26. EIEEE

26. Fixed assets

KEE
The Group
BRREE
office
REMEEE  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture B Motor g
improvement  and fixtures ~ Computers vehicle Total
T AL THT FAT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W-ZE——£—-F-A Net book amount as at
IRE S 1 January 2012 4157 996 26,121 - 31,274
NE Additions 124 93 11,341 424 11,982
& (K3 10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (1,579) (381) (12,061) (106) (14,127)
SEER AR Exchange adjustments - - () - (1
MZZE-——%+-F=1—H Netbookamountas at
IREFE 31 December 2012 2,102 708 25,400 318 29128
NE Additions 14,040 1,584 17,096 = 32,720
& (K3 10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (1,825) (398) (15,434) (106) (17,763)
R=ZE-=£+-A=1+-H Netbook amount as at
REFE 31 December 2013 14,917 1,894 27,062 212 44,085
R-ZE-=£+-FA=t+-H Asat31December 2013
RAE Cost 27,082 8,695 173,617 650 210,044
ZiHE Accumulated depreciation (12,165 (6,801) (146,555) (438) (165,959)
REFE Net book amount 14,917 1,894 27,062 212 44,085
WZE——F+-A=+—H Asat31December2012
FXAE Cost 13,042 7,158 156,479 650 177,329
ZithhE Accumulated depreciation (10,340) (6,450) (131,079) (332) (148,201)
IREFE Net book amount 2,702 708 25,400 318 29,128
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YN
The Company
WAERE
BRRER
Office
REMELE  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture ik Motor fxg
improvement  and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
TEL AL THL AL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W=F-——£—-F—H Net book amount as at
IREFE 1 January 2012 4,157 91 25,301 - 30,949
NE Additions 124 93 11,341 424 11,982
ik Depreciation charge (1,579 (376) (11,754) (106) (13.815)
WZE——%+-A=1—H Netbookamountas at
REEE 31 December 2012 2,702 708 25,338 318 29,116
ANE Additions 14,040 1,584 17,096 - 32,720
e Depreciation charge (1,825) (398) (15,422) (106) (17,751)
RZF-=#+-A=1-H Netbook amount as at
REFR 31 December 2013 14,917 1894 27,062 212 44,085
R=E-=£+-fA=1+-H Asat31December 2013
AE Cost 27,082 8,666 172,154 650 208,552
ZETE Accumulated depreciation (12,165) 6,772 (145,092) 438) (164,467)
RE T Net book amount 14917 1,894 27,062 212 44,085
MZE-—-F+-A=1+—H Asat31December 2012
KAE Cost 13,042 7,130 155,058 650 175,880
ZiHE Accumulated depreciation (10,340) (6422) (129,670) (332 (146,764)
REFE Net book amount 2,702 708 25,388 318 29116
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27. FEfFIE 27. Interest payable

PN | PN
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
FEx FHET FTEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A T &IBHERF B Interest payable from
—BRITEBES — debt securities issued 175,598 200,951 175,598 200,951
— FEEE L — interest rate swap
contracts 19,040 33,488 19,040 33,488
— EBETRIBESFKX — mortgage-backed
HihBE securities issued and
other liabilities 1,192 1,317 1,192 1,247

195,830 235,756 195,830 235,686

28. ;ﬂﬁiﬁmﬁlﬁ - FEfTFZ R HEME 28. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
= liabilities

by .| b NG|
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
THERT FAET FTHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FESIRIE R R X Accounts payable and
accrued expenses 68,155 102,628 68,623 114,767
=0 SO Other payable - = - 210,474
HthBE Other liabilities 4,523,574 4,340,370 4,523,574 4,340,370
Hith B Other provision 20,531 22,118 20,531 22,118
4,612,260 4,465,116 4,612,728 4,687,729
HivBEEETDEBERR TR Other liabilities represented the guarantee fee of HK$309,333,000
Il 8 25 e P U B B9 HE 4R B 309,333,000 (2012: HK$140,241,000) received under the special concessionary
(= Z— — 4 : 140,241,00058 7T ) (i3 measures of the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (Notes 17 and
17M38) EMRERAR-ZZEZE=F1+_H 38) and the deferred consideration of HK$4,214,241,000 (2012:
E—ZEZTNF-ABBRFABENZBER HK$4,200,129,000) used for credit enhancement on the mortgage
EELHEIREEARENE4,214,241,000 loans purchased from the Government in December 2003 and
AIT(ZF—Z4F : 4,200,129,000%7T) ° January 2004.
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485t » ZR2 ][ Bauhinia MBS Limited H & In aggregate, the Company sold HK$3 billion of mortgage loans to
BB TIRBERIEE R - WEEZE Bauhinia MBS Limited for securitisation, in which, the Company
EREFESEMNIEE  BRIZBENRA continued to recognise the mortgage loans in “Loan portfolio, net”
[EFRMAEEFR] - ARR [H &R FIE to the extent of the guarantee and continuing involvement. A
fE 58 — 2 J& {J Bauhinia MBS Limited #) & liability due to Bauhinia MBS Limited shown as “Other payable” of
BE-R-_TE——F+-_A=1+—8 EHfp HK$210,474,000 was recognised as at 31 December 2012 (Note
[~ 7R 38 5 210,474,000 7 7T (i 5£37) o 37).
29. RIEEERBREEE 29. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets
rEE T5E
The Group The Group
2013
) BRRE ik 8 R et
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross i Net
TR THT TR BT THT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
AmBRERERERAE Provision for unearned premiums and
guarantee fees 1,253,898 175764 1,078,134 19605 215605 1,280,451
R Provision for outstanding claims
—BER/(kE)8xR — claims reported/recovery) 8,156 (2 8,158 8228 2 8230
—BELRRRHHR — claims incurred but not reported 32,658 4,980 27,678 41579 6,404 35,175

40,814 4,978 35,836 49,807 6,402 43,405

1,294,712 180,742 1,113,970 1,945,863 222,007 1,323,856

b N YN
The Company The Company
2013 2012
2] BRRE BE E2 it et
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
THr FEL TR BT Tt BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RuBRERERERAR Provision for unearned premiums and
guarantee fees 1,253,898 175,764 1,078,134 1,496,056 215,605 1,280,451
RRBREE Provision for outstanding claims
— B8R/ (KE) AR — claims reported/(recovery) 8,156 (2 8,158 8,228 2) 8,230
—BELEAERER — claims incurred but not reported 34,980 5,291 29,689 43792 6,769 37,003

43136 5289 37,847 52,020 6,767 45,283

1,297,034 181,053 1,115,981 1,548,076 222372 1,325,704
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(a) RKAHREREREREES (a) Analysis of movements in provision for unearned
T premiums and guarantee fees
AEERAAF AERERAAT
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2013 20
3] BRR ik 4
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance
TR TR TR T TBx THx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®n—H—H Asat 1 January 1,496,056 215,605 1,280,451 1,568,916 199,467 1,369,449
EERE (FI5E8) Premiums written (Note 8) 318,053 43,414 274,639 556,885 112,347 444,538
EREMRE (FI5E8) Premiums earmed (Note 8) (560,211)  (83,255)  (476,956)  (629,749) (96209 (533534)
R+=F=+—H As at 31 December 1,253,898 175,764 1,078,134 1,496,056 215,605 1,280,451
(b) KRRBERBHEEHOMWOT (b) Analysis of movements in provision for outstanding
claims
piN- 1| A5E
The Group The Group
2013 2012
£ BRRE bk ES et
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Ti#x THT TR THT BT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
W—RA—8 Asat 1 January 49,807 6,402 43,405 61,679 9,444 52,235
RENLEEA Claims paid (998) - (998) (2479) (285) 2,194)
BifEERR Claims recovery 2,511 315 2,196 53 47 6
B(RE)/ErRR(HEs) Claims (written back)/incurred (Note 8)
—BHRER — claims reported (1,585) (315) (1,270) 8,772 238 8,534
—BELERRHRER — claims incurred but not reported (8,921) (1,424) (7,497) (18218) (3042 (15,17¢)
W+ZR=1-H As at 31 December 40,814 4,978 35,836 49,807 6,402 43405
NG| YN
The Company The Company
2013 2012
3] BRR ik 4
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance
Ti#n THET TR T TBx BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
®“—A—H Asat 1 January 52,020 6,767 45,253 61,679 9,444 52,235
BffER Claims paid (998) - (998) (2,662) (285) (2377)
RI(EEES Claims recovery 2,694 315 2,379 53 47 6
B(R%)/EEER Claims (written backy/incurred
—BHHR — claims reported (1,768) (315) (1,453) 8,955 238 8,717
—BELBRRFHER — claims incurred but not reported (8,812) (1,478) (7.334) (16,005) 2.677) (13,328)
Rt+-A=+t—-H As at 31 December 43,136 5,289 37,847 52,020 6,767 45,253
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() BfixRAE (c)

ETBERRARE  ZR2HEH
REeERErRREEERSHERS
MEMREMGE  AIRBERIRZZ
—=F+-A=+—RHARkR=ZT—=F
TZA=1+—H  AX&EENRREE
R °

30. EB1TERRES

Liability adequacy test

The liability adequacy test considers current estimates of all
contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as
claims handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Group’s
insurance liabilities are adequate.

30. Debt securities issued

REBRAAT
The Group and the Company

2013 2012
FTERT THAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

BB R AR TIIR O ERE FH Debt securities carried at
amortised cost
B TRBEITFEIES DIP notes 299,944 559,800
R EIES MTN 1,924,736 2,832,695
REESS R AT IR M BT 2B 5 4% Total debt securities carried at
amortised cost 2,224,680 3,392,495
EEAYFIER WA FEH S Debt securities designated as
HEKHS hedged items under
fair value hedge
B TRBEITFEIES DIP notes 6,447,350 9,079,358
TEEHFEITEIREMES RBIP and other notes - 50,999
R EIES MTN 22,358,153 23,541,488
S AYhIE B I AR FEYHR  Total debt securities designated as
KBRS E 5B hedged items under fair value hedge 28,805,503 32,671,845
RYOBRAFEERSUATLE Debt securities designated as at
B ABRNELEES fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition
B TABITEIES DIP notes 124,738 138,996
TEBESHEITT I REMES RBIP and other notes 200,264 201,291
NETEREIEE AL AT E Total debt securities designated as at
Bt ABRHETS B A 4258 fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition 325,002 340,287
B TESE 545 Total debt securities issued 31,355,185 36,404,627
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ﬁéim'ﬁziﬁﬁ%ﬁf —ZFEm)R
IR EREIEE A FEZ LT A B E’J
BEREZ - ;A%%mﬂﬁﬁzgiﬁﬁ
ﬂ%fﬁlﬁmaﬁz@% R E TR E 7%

AFESCHABENERAEREE
fwiI¢J§'<%FM’J%EEEA@JHEET,,\|‘11 %
BB AZ &5 64,198,000/ T (==
— 4 : 48,913,000787T) °

ZERERNAR IF@@JVPEE’JJEWQE\E/X
EMEABBREANRRIZEERRE

EERTERIESNESHMMNT

During the year, no debt securities (2012: nil) were designated on
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair
value changes are attributable to changes in benchmark interest
rates for the debt securities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition is HK$64,198,000 (2012: HK$48,913,000) lower than the
amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in
the credit risk of the Company for those financial liabilities

designated as at fair value.

The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

REBRAAT
The Group and the Company
2013 2012
F#ET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
n—H—H As at 1 January 35,268,184 40,312,410
1T Issuance 18,161,718 19,098,302
Rk BB Less: Redemption (21,984,670) (24,149,259)
HNEEBE b = KA Exchange difference (447) 6,731
HEBEERE Total nominal value 31,444,785 35,268,184
IR EEEH Unamortised portion of discount (130,483) (129,005)
NEEHEE Fair value adjustment 40,883 1,265,448
R+=—A=+—8H As at 31 December 31,355,185 36,404,627
REFETHES Notes issued during the year comprise:
AEERAD T
The Group and
the Company
FEAES
MTN
F#ET
HK$'000
BEETEHEEE Amount issued at nominal value 18,161,718
B YRR IE Consideration received 18,127,508

PrABBITHEREF D EA K EEEA
EE & 1T%F AT ;’é%"é&%ﬂrﬁi\—%
EEeMEERER

All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
working capital and refinancing.
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31. ETIRIBESH 31. Mortgage-backed securities issued

rEER
The Group

2013 2012
TR TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

RS AN HIIR ST R AN A EIHE(R MBS at amortised cost and guaranteed by

BIRIGE S LT EI T ikiE the Company under the
#5 (MisE37) MBS Programme (Note 37) - 214,672
®n—HA—H As at 1 January 214,672 367,137
& BB Less: Redemption (214,672) (152,465)
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December - 214,672
FrBERBEFE REREARNEREL - All MBS were collateralised obligation of the structured
WARRARGBERBEREAGREREES entities and issued for the purpose of providing funds to
mEAT (EE37) - IBERBIEFER-Z purchase mortgage portfolios from the Company (Note 37).
—=F=AEM - All MBS were redeemed in March 2013.
32. Ig=& 32. Share capital
—E—=FR
—E—_F
2013 and 2012
FTET
HK$'000
A Authorised
BIXEE 175 TR 30 1B I E F AL 3 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,000,000
BEETRERE Issued and fully paid
BAXTEE 178 TR 20 (B @A 2 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2,000,000
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33. HihiEis 33. Other reserves

L
The Group

Bl AYERE Hifkf B

Contingency Fair value Hedging Translation &g
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
THL T TiEx THx T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

W=E--f-f—-H Asat 1 January 2012 731,562 302,615 (13,244)¢ 10911 1,031,844

AftEERENATEZE:  Changeinfair value of
available-for-sale securities:

— RERNRFE — net unrealised gains - 357,875 - - 357,875
— LERER (f312) — realisation on disposal (Note 12) - (38,230) - = (38.230)
— B — amortisation* - 39 - - 39
— HE iz 14(0) — tax effect (Note 14(o) - (52,748) - - (52.748)
—RERRNAERER — net unrealised losses of a
A (i 24) joint venture (Note 24) = (32 = = (32)
BE ML Cash flow hedges
—BANRHERNATESS  —fairvalue changes transferred
to income statement - - 5,495 - 5495
— R (= 14(0) — tax effect (Note 14(0) - - (907) - (907)
EBERES Currency translation difference
A — subsidiary = - - 914 914
— 5B (FisE2) — joint venture (Note 24) - - - 5,276 5,276
HEAE A AR ERED Release of fair value and translation
AT ERENEL#E reserve upon disposal of
(MizE24) investment in a joint venture
(Note 24) - (410) - (7.323) (7,733
£zl (58 Other comprehensive income/(loss) - 266,494 4,588 (1133 269,949
MREEFEASTHREER  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net
REFBHS0%75%E risk premium earned from retained
RRERE profits to contingency reserve 266,266 - - = 266,266
mEREEEENZREHEN  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (20,055) - - - (20,055)
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55
The Group
BRFE DT ERE HihfitE EiffE
Contingency Fair value Hedging Translation ag
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
THr T TR THT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=E——F+-A=+-H/ Asat31December 2012/
~“E-=%-f-H 1 January 2013 977,773 569,109 (8,656) 9,778 1,548,004
AEREESNATEEE :  Change infair value of
available-for-sale securities:
—AEEERYE —net unrealised losses - (37,853) - - (37,853)
— HEREE (312) — realisation on disposal (Note 12) - (295,593) - - (295,593)
— B — amortisation* - 34 - - 34
— 5138 (Fira 14(0) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) - 54,908 - - 54,908
RemEn Cash flow hedges
—EANNGROATER — fair value changes transferred
to income Statement - - 4272 - 4272
— BiE (MR 1400)) — tax effect (Note 14(0)) - = (704) - (704)
ERERZE Currency translation difference
—lBAd — subsidiary - - - 3,32 332
HE2E (BE) i Other comprehensive (10ss)/income - (278,504) 3,568 3326 (271,610)
mREEFERESmEER  Transfer of 50% or 75% of netrisk
REFENS%HT5%ZE premium eamed from retained
BB profits to contingency reserve 259,008 - - - 259,008
HERFEEDZRERR Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (22,954) - - - (22,954)
R=ZB-=F+=-A=1+—-H Asat31December 2013 1,213,827 290,605 (5,088) 13,104 1,512,448

* HAEHEEFERERE 2 RHESRR * the amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale
FHEE - NEE RN - securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
& R_ZF-ZER_T—FHEIHERFNR # brought forward from cumulative loss then existing in hedging reserve when

S E TR TR RETER Bl 2
& - WRBEITHHR S REH o

cash flow hedges were de-designated in 2010 and 2011. Since then, no new
cash flow hedge has been conducted.
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ADH

The Company
Bk R DR EREE HH S
Contingency Fair value Hedging ko]
reserve reserve reserve Total
FHET FHET FHIT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Rn-_Z——F—Hf—H As at 1 January 2012 731,562 302,173 (13,244)¢ 1,020,491
At EBEFNAFE Change in fair value of
g available-for-sale securities:
— RERWRREE — net unrealised gains - 357,875 - 357,875
— HERZR (FiEE12) — realisation on disposal
(Note 12) - (38,230) - (38,230)
—H — amortisation* - 39 - 39
— R (F3E 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14 (b)) - (52,748) = (52,748)
B Cash flow hedges
—BAREENATE — fair value changes
b)) transferred to income
statement - - 5,495 5,495
— BB (FTEE14() — tax effect (Note 14(b)) = = (907) (907)
Ht 2wk Other comprehensive income - 266,936 4,588 271,524
HRZRNEREDREAR  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net
TREFEER) 50% 3 75% risk premium earned from
EREBREE retained profits to
contingency reserve 266,266 - - 266,266
R BRI ZREEH Release of contingency reserve
to retained profits (20,055) - - (20,055)
NZZT——F+=-A=+—H,/ Asat 31 December 2012/
“T—=%—8—H 1 January 2013 977,773 569,109 (8,656) 1,538,226
AL EBEFNRTE Change in fair value of
#E) available-for-sale securities:
— RBIBEIREE — net unrealised losses - (37,853) = (37,853)
— HEREZH (H:E12) — realisation on disposal
(Note 12) = (295,593) = (295,593)
— - — amortisation* - 34 - 34
— BIE (FIEE 14(0) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) - 54,908 = 54,908
B Cash flow hedges
—BABSEROLTE — fair value changes
#E) transferred to income
statement - - 4,272 4,272
— B8 (P RE14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) - - (704) (704)
Hip 2 (E8),/Wes Other comprehensive
(loss)/income - (278,504) 3,568 (274,936)
MR EMERD WEEE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net
1REFHE ) 50% 2K 75% risk premium earned from
ZEBRRFEE retained profits to
contingency reserve 259,008 - - 259,008
AR FEREZREEH Release of contingency reserve
to retained profits (22,954) - - (22,954)
NR=—F—=F+=-H=+—H Asat31December 2013 1,213,827 290,605 (5,088) 1,499,344
* At E A ER TR A E B AR R * the amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale
IR - USRS o securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
& AT TFERN_T——FETBHIENE # brought forward from cumulative loss then existing in hedging reserve when
SR E TS TR AT EE Bt cash flow hedges were de-designated in 2010 and 2011. Since then, no new
% - WRBEITHHNR SR - cash flow hedge has been conducted.
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34. HMBRMALETIIMEXRR S
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(a)

RNATHPBF R RAIMNERE S ETR
ANF DR - NRRIEBBALR

NTZERS e

HRFERREEESRERER(F
BEER)NZXSHBRE TSR

() ARFEAHESSERME
ENEFLIAPREE ZHR
BARETEREENRER
s YHM10EBT(ZF
——F:10BB )LD ES
ER - EAAFEEERZRE
WERA

iy SIEESEB/BFESSEREAR
A AR E300E B THERE
B R -_ZET—=F+_4
=t BHUEREEHBE(=
T )

iy RZZTFE—=F+-_A=+—
B AREIEBHIRENRE D
NEESEBREREH(ZT
——F2718FT) R

(iv) ARABRAEFEEHS70EHE
TT(ZZE—=% : 1,030857T)
TERESER  EANEES
ERMEAEINER -

HHFNR S EETFIRA

() ARRRPEERFEEER
WA= WP A RRER
BR AFEEAHBT6508
BI(ZT——F : 6508 ETT)
HETEBLER

34. Material related party transactions

(a)

The Company is owned by the Financial Secretary as
Controller of the Exchange Fund. The Company entered into
various transactions with the following related parties.

Transactions with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(HKMA), a Government-related entity, included the
following:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

the Company subscribed to the custodian and clearing
agent services provided by the Central Moneymarkets
Unit Service operated by the HKMA and paid HK$1.1
million (2012: HK$1 million) by way of fees to the HKMA
for such services during the year;

the Exchange Fund through the HKMA had provided
the Company with a HK$30 billion revolving credit
facility, and there was no outstanding balance as at 31
December 2013 (2012: nil),;

the Company held no investment (2012: HK$270
million) in the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Bills and
Notes as at 31 December 2013; and

the Company paid a secondment fee of HK$8.7 million
(2012: HK$10.3 million) for secondees from the HKMA
during the vear.

Transactions with the Government included the following:

(i)

the Company rented office premises from The Financial
Secretary Incorporated (FSI) and paid a total of HK$6.5
million (2012: HK$6.5 million) rental to the HKMA under
the direction of FSI during the year;
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(i) ARARAFERMEARE
EEBEEISIEET(ZE
——F 127 EBT)RIBE

xh .
A

(i) RZBE—=F+=-"A=+—
B ANAREHALOEST(Z
T——F A5 EBET) BAER
FEHREE - BEFIE1,760
EBT(ZTE—ZF 17808
B &

(ivy ARABR-_ZE——FHAMR
BRHRNEEEERETE LA
EBENEREKTERBABNX
NHBEERIRFBAIEREA 1,000
BT - HE— @A\ AE
RERENERERER 715
EHIFAFIFE38 ©

HPENBERRABTBEBERRERAD
ANZHBETIIEE

iy ARFRMBARIRIEREE
8 B iR I8 BRI IRIBR
% &

iy ERNEENRINEEE
HEBRIBERAR AR RIE
SEFIRANE2ET BN
RIT > WA ERGTE 2 M
B o WRET S BB
BEEARARANRA R HE
ETAR  RifEIMEREHRS
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—=F+-_A=1+—HI LA KREE
HEp (T ——F : 2158 7T) (W
5E31) o

(iii)

(iv)

the Company purchased mortgage loans of HK$151
million (2012: HK$127 million) from FSI during the year;

the Company held investment of HK$449 million (2012:
HK$454 million) in the Hong Kong Government Bonds
as at 31 December 2013 and the interest thereon was
HK$17.6 million (2012: HK$17.8 million); and

the Company introduced a new loan guarantee
product with 80% guarantee coverage under the
existing SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) in
May 2012 at a concessionary guarantee fee rate and
up to a total loan guarantee commitment of HK$100
billion reimbursable by the Government with details set
out in Note 38.

Transactions with HKMC Mortgage Management Limited
(HMML), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
included the following:

(i)

(if)

the Company provided mortgage insurance cover for
mortgage loans purchased by such subsidiary in the
course of its ordinary business; and

the Company as scheme operator, HMML and various
participating banks as loan originators entered into
loan participation agreements under the Microfinance
Scheme pursuant to which HMML would fund all or
part of the microfinance loans as funding vehicle for
the Company.

Transactions with the structured entities included the
guarantee cover provided by the Company for the MBS
issued by the structured entities and there was no
outstanding balance as at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$215
million) (Note 31).
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Mt —A=+—BEBEEALTERR
BN EAIN T -

The balances of the amounts due to and from the relevant
related parties as at 31 December are as follows:

EREBARZE
(HizE 237003 25)

EREEARA
E 815708 (WfE28)
AR E (M)

RERSAT AN ER
(R 3.2.(a))
BBRFER

r%@ NG|
The Group The Company
B B B ERAR
The Government The Government Subsidiaries Structured entities
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
TR TAL TiEx TAT TR THx TAL
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
Amounts due from group
companies
(Note 23 and Note 25) - = - - 5191,190  33840,609 - 7,984
Amounts due to group companies - - - - - - 252 12,497
Other payable (Note 28) - - - - - - - 20474
Other liabilities (Note 28) 4523574 4340370 4,523,574 4,340,370 - = - =
Financial guarantees under the
MBS Programme (Note 3.2.(al) - = - = - = - 214,742
Total risk-in-force - - - - 572,832 486,252 - -

(b) XEEHEAS

FEETEEREASNFMHERE

e hEMEHEESRN

(b) Key management personnel

Key management are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including
directors and senior officers.

Key management personnel compensation for the year
comprised:

AEE RN T
The Group and the Company

2013
TR
HK$'000

2012
T
HK$'000

Salaries and other short-term

employee benefits 16,237 17,439
Bz A Post-employment benefits 1,356 1,217
17,593 18,656
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35. ki 35. Commitments

(a) &XF (a) Capital
FEERADQT
The Group and the Company
2013 2012
FHExT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHERETA Authorised and contracted for 1,642 3,744
EHRUEERETA Authorised but not contracted for 13,311 34,011
14,953 37,755
(b) £EZEEL (b) Operating lease
MREHMEAR - BB L =S Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
HMBELHRREER S REBRE operating lease at the end of the reporting period are
DT - analysed as follows:
BN ARAH
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
TET FHET TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WAEYE Office premises
— RER—F — not later than one year 29,465 20,087 29,218 19,847

— ZR—FETZRAF — later than one year
and not later than

five years 53,065 12,928 52,572 12,210

82,530 33,015 81,790 32,057

ERREIFERAT[ —T—=FFH® 223



HEBEIRERMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. IRIBIRMEETS 36. Mortgage insurance business
RZF—=F+=-A=+—8 ' A£EHN As 31 December 2013, the total risk-in-force of the Group was
RBRIGIRBEEL B144EBRETT(ZE——F - approximately HK$14.4 billion (2012: HK$16.6 billion) of which
166188 L) HR24EBTL(ZZ——F : HK$2.4 billion (2012: HK$2.8 billion) was ceded to the approved
2888 7L) EMZEBRRAREEBR reinsurers and the balance of HK$12 billion (2012: HK$13.8 billion)
% MANSEE R B 1T&ER T 120185 T was retained by the Group.

(ZZ——F 138 BB L) AR -

RI20BAET(ZE——4F : 1388 T) B Out of the HK$12 billion (2012: HK$13.8 billion) of risk-in-force

AREFEAENRRIZEREER - 1288 T retained by the Group, the excess loss of HK$1.2 billion (2012:
—E—F 18EA ) ARk RENHE HK$1.8 billion) of risk-in-force was hedged through the use of

HELAEEBERBBEEIBRRNOTHE excess-0f-l0ss reinsurance arrangement to reinsure the middle
15 8 B0 R B fE S - T AN S B PR B layer risk positions, and the Group retained a portion of the total

o MR - BB X EE R R R A L risk comprising the first-loss and remote risk portions.

MR A RS ©

37. EHRHEE 37. Pledged assets
EE ARG H B ERIREEREE RER Structured entities charged their assets as securities or otherwise
TIVETEZE - UIRBEERBEAFLTEIE transferred by way of security for issuing guaranteed or non-
EBRTEERABEREBES - F510 guaranteed MBS in accordance with the provisions under the
EZAENEFREEASREREEAT relevant securitisation programmes. The security trustee appointed
(A BRIRIEEAT= - BIAATEAE under the relevant securitisation programmes will enforce the
RA) SR —RARIE B HH RN RSELD securities over the relevant pledged assets when the relevant
B (TEZSERCEREENERS - structured entity (and, in the case of guaranteed MBS, the

Company as guarantor) defaults in payment under any series of
MBS or otherwise on the occurrence of an event of default in
respect of any series of MBS.
REE
The Group
2013 2012
FHET FATT
HK$°000 HK$'000
SRR EE Assets pledged
ZIBEFHEE (FizE28) Mortgage portfolio (Note 28) - 210,474
FRHEE Secured liabilities
BEITIRBE S (FIE31) Mortgage-backed securities issued
(Note 31) - 214,672
ERFRBEFAS BEEEERBENR Mortgage portfolio pledged included the transferred mortgage
HERERRFELEFEEN [ ERAE portfolio continued to be recognised as assets in “Loan portfolio,
G AERBEE (FIFE28) ° net” to the extent of the guarantee and continuing involvement
(Note 28).
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38.

39.

BN SR E R R G 8T RS B
EEEE

ARBR—_T——FAARBHNF /D
BEERTE - AESNEREKRTRA
BURT 32 5 B0 A8 B SR AR B AR R B8 43 1,000 278
TT R —EFTER K ERERENERE
REEdR ° H LIRS RIS B P2 4R 22 mm P AR
MERE  BEEZBANIARENE
IREN RABREF S - B SRR BB R T
BT o a0 AT Y B B HE R B 1 J2 DA TE 151 4R 8
RBERER BB AESRE KNAF
BENERNEEWAERESEMSL

FRAEEARINERERER  HAKH
MR RERABBERERNEA 2
MREKEMCERHBERASLRETE -
ERARABARERRBNLEEEEMR
AE B R AE B L E A BB A A 2515 8
KRBT - Bt ZERIAERRILZHE
JIMARBHEERBERINELR | RIEM
KA R R ENEART R RIE5] - TFEER
ERIERENR -

BBMBRR

BEERN T -WFMNAEHBARLE
K e

38.

39.

Special concessionary measures under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Company introduced a new loan guarantee product with 80%
guarantee coverage under the existing SFGS in May 2012 at a
concessionary guarantee fee rate and up to a total loan guarantee
commitment of HK$100 billion reimbursable by the Government.
All guarantee fees collected under this special loan guarantee
product are set aside to meet the relevant default claims and
related out-of-pocket expenses. The remaining balance of the
guarantee fees, if any, will be returned to, and any shortfall will be
borne by, the Government. The Company is responsible for the
operation of the new product and the applicable day-to-day
operating costs.

Regarding this special loan guarantee product, there is no impact
on the consolidated income statement of the Group in respect of
guarantee fee revenue, default claims or any direct expenses
involved. Given that the Company operates only this product for
the Government, the Group considers the risk and rewards
associated with this product rest with the Government. Hence, the
risk-in-force for this product has not been included as the Group's
off-balance sheet exposures and no capital charge is required
under the Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio approved by the
Financial Secretary.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
on 7 April 2014.

ERARBIFERAT —T—=FF% 225



	23 Income_EC140743-0519-1315
	24 Com Income_EC140743-0519-1315
	25 Con Fin Position_EC140743-0519-1315
	26 Fin Position_EC140743-0519-1315
	27 Equity_EC140743-0519-1315
	28 CFS_EC140743-0519-1315
	29A Notes_EC140743-0519-1315
	29B Notes_EC140743-0519-1315
	29C Notes_EC140743-0519-1315

